
NOTICE OF MEETING 
THURSDAY, JUNE 14, 2018  

  6:00 p.m.  
 

Park District of Highland Park 
Board of Park Commissioners 

West Ridge Center 
636 Ridge Rd. 

Highland Park, IL 60035 

WORKSHOP MEETING AGENDA 
 
 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
II. ROLL CALL 

 
III. ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 

 
IV. PARK AVENUE BARGE 

 
V. SAND MANAGEMENT 

 
VI. GOLF MECCA UPDATE 

 
VII. HIGHLAND PARK COUNTRY CLUB REVIEW 

  
VIII. SUNSET VALLEY GOLF UPDATES 

A. GOLF COURSE 
B. CLUBHOUSE 

 
IX. REVIEW OF VOUCHERS 

 
X. OPEN TO PUBLIC TO ADDRESS BOARD 

 
XI. CLOSED SESSION PURSUANT TO THE FOLLOWING SECTIONS OF THE OPEN 

MEETINGS ACT:  Section 2(c)1 – the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline 
of the District including legal counsel for the District; Section 2(c)5 – the purchase or lease of 
real estate including discussion on whether a certain parcel of property should be acquired; 
Section 2(c)6 – the setting of a price for sale or lease of property owned by the District; 
Section 2(c)8 – security procedures and the use of personnel and equipment to respond to 
an actual, a threatened, or a reasonably potential danger to the safety of employees, 
students, staff, the public, or public property; Section 2(c) 11 – litigation against or on behalf 
of the District or where the District finds that an action is probable or imminent; Section 2(c) 
21 – the discussion of minutes lawfully closed under the Act, whether for the purposes of 
approval of said minutes or for conducting the semi-annual review of the minutes as set forth 
in section 2.06 of the Act.; Section 2(c) 29 -  for discussions between internal or external 
auditors and the Board. Possible action by the Board on items discussed in closed session. 

 
XII. ACTION FROM CLOSED SESSION IF ANY 
 
 
 
 
 



NOTICE OF MEETING 
THURSDAY, JUNE 14, 2018  

  6:00 p.m.  
 

Park District of Highland Park 
Board of Park Commissioners 

West Ridge Center 
636 Ridge Rd. 

Highland Park, IL 60035 

 
 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Persons with disabilities requiring reasonable accommodation to participate in this meeting should contact the Park 
District’s ADA Compliance Officer, Liza McElroy, at the Park District’s Administrative Office, 636 Ridge Road, Highland 
Park, IL Monday through Friday from 8:30 a.m. until 5:00 p.m. at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.  Requests for a 
qualified ASL interpreter require five (5) working days advance notice.  Telephone number 847-831-3810; fax number 
847-831-0818. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To:  Board of Park Commissioners 
 

From: Jeff Smith, Assistant Director of Parks, Properties & Planning; Dan Voss, Director of Parks, 
Properties and Planning; Kathy Donahue, Deputy Director of Operations; Liza McElroy, 
Executive Director  

 

Date:  June 14, 2018 
 

Subject: PARK AVENUE BARGE UPDATE 

 
 
The Park District released a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for Engineering Services on May 25, 2018 to 
hire an engineering firm to conduct a thorough study for the repair or replacement of the barge at Park 
Avenue.  On June 8, 2018 the Park District received Statements of Qualifications from five firms. 
 
Staff will provide an overview of the RFQ process as well as a summary of the results. 
 
A final recommendation, including fee negotiated with the top ranked firm, will be presented at the June 
26 Board Meeting. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To:  Board of Park Commissioners 
 

From: Rebecca Grill, Natural Areas Manager; Jeff Smith, Assistant Director of Parks, Properties & 
Planning; Dan Voss, Director of Parks, Properties and Planning; Kathy Donahue, Deputy 
Director of Operations; Liza McElroy, Executive Director  

 

Date:  June 14, 2018 
 

Subject: SAND REPORT 

 
 
Lake Michigan levels rise and fall seasonally, annually and over long periods of time.  Currently, lake 
levels are higher than average for this time of year.   Coming on the heels of near record lows, this 
change is quite noticeable at all our lakefront parks.  
  
High lake levels can increase the impact of storms on our beaches, causing enhanced erosion.   This was 
the case on April 14, 2018 when a storm pounded the shore with offshore wave heights of 12 to 18 feet, 
on top of already elevated water levels.  Communities up and down the north shore experienced 
significant beach erosion. 
  
Staff will present on current lake conditions, including historical context for the current conditions as well 
as regional efforts to monitor and address long-term best management practices for beach protection. 
Staff will also discuss plans to acquire a Beach Nourishment Permit to allow the Park District the ability to 
add additional sand to Rosewood Beach in future years. 
 
The attached Fact Sheet provides details of lake level history and discusses our current beach 
protections.   It was prepared by Park District staff with the assistance of the Illinois Coastal Management 
Program and the IDNR Sand Management Working Group. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

What’s Happening at the Beach 
As the weather warms and our beaches officially open for business Memorial Day 

weekend, you may notice some changes to the shoreline at our lakefront parks.  Just in 

the past few years, water level in Lake Michigan has risen from historic lows to higher 

than average levels.  Communities all along the Illinois Lake Michigan shoreline, 

including Highland Park, are experiencing narrower beaches, “disappearing” piers and 

beach erosion. 
 

What is happening to lake levels? 

The rise and fall of lake level is a normal process for the Great Lakes. Lake level varies 

daily, monthly, seasonally, and annually. Just five years ago, in the spring of 2013, Lake 

Michigan was experiencing close to record lows. Today, Lake Michigan water level is 

more than a foot above normal long-term averages for this time of year. 
 

Why are lake levels rising now? 

There are many reasons for Great Lakes water levels to rise.  In Lake Michigan, a primary 

reason is the balance between evaporation and precipitation.  Back-to-back cold 

winters in 2013 and 2014 contributed to the sudden increase in 2014.  Ice cover blocked 

typical patterns of winter evaporation and then contributed to subsequent runoff from 

melting of snow and ice. 
 

What are the forecasts? 

For this summer, the Army Corps of Engineers forecasts that lake levels will follow their 

typical seasonal trends, but at higher than average levels.  Even though these water 

levels are high, they are nowhere near the record highs of the 1980s.  Observed lake 

levels in April 2018 were about 19 inches below the maximum recorded level measured 

in 1986. 
 

What other ways are the lake levels different now? 

We started this spring with more water in Lake Michigan than last year.  October 2017 

was a wet season in the Great Lakes Region, according to the Army Corps of Engineers.  

Lake levels that typically decline by November, rose in October compared to their 

typical patterns.  Lake Michigan was nearly 17 inches above its long-term average in 

October 2017. 
 

How do higher lake levels affect the shore? 

Even as we started the year with higher water levels than last year, April of 2018 brought 

higher than average precipitation, including a storm on April 14, 2018 that pounded our 

shoreline with offshore wave heights of 12 to 18 feet, on top of already elevated water 

levels.  When lake level is high, waves can reach higher up onto the shore and 

potentially cause more beach erosion. 
 

 

 

 



 

What does this mean for our beaches? 

The amount of sand loss experienced from a given storm varies based on the geology of 

the beach as well as the nature of shore protection.  For example, Rosewood Beach 

may appear narrower this summer, but its breakwaters and coves were designed by the 

United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) to protect and repair the beach from 

the effects of high lake levels and extreme storms.  If there were no breakwaters, the 

beach would be completely exposed to wave energy and vulnerable to enhanced 

erosion.   

 

The USACE designed Rosewood in anticipation that there would be some sand loss while 

the beach settles in and takes its natural shape.  That has been happening over the past 

few years, even as lake levels have risen.  During storm events, the design allows sand 

that is pulled off the dry beach to settle in front of the breakwaters, migrating into and 

between the beach coves, where it provides future protection for the shore by breaking 

the energy of storm waves before they hit the beach. By design, once full, the 

breakwaters and coves allow additional sand to move down the shoreline. 
 

Historical shoreline data indicates that most beaches recover from high lake levels once 

the water levels recede, according to Dr. Theuerkauf of the Illinois State Geological 

Survey (ISGS) at the University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign.  Theuerkauf notes that 

this recovery process may take several years of sustained lower lake levels. Predicting 

exactly when this will occur is extremely difficult given the complexity of the processes 

driving water level variations in Lake Michigan.   

 

What is the Park District Doing? 

As the Park District works to provide safe and fun beach-going experiences through 

routine maintenance of our beaches, we also recognize that we are part of a dynamic 

and complicated lake ecosystem that requires us to have proactive and flexible plans in 

place to continue to protect our shoreline.   That is why the District participates with 

other lake shore communities in the Sand Management Working Group, which partners 

scientists, local, state and federal agencies and the IDNR Coastal Management 

Program to better understand and find long term best practices for coastal issues.  
 

What Else is Going On? 

Arising from the Sand Management Working Group and in conjunction with the Illinois 

State Geological Survey, a citizen-science program called COASTS (Citizens Observing 

and Surveying the Shoreline) has been developed which trains volunteers to collect 

beach erosion and accretion data at sites throughout Illinois.  To learn more about 

COASTs:  https://publish.illinois.edu/lakemichigancoasts/ 
 

  

 



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To:  Board of Park Commissioners 

From: Liza McElroy, Executive Director  

Date:  June 14, 2018 

Subject: GOLF MECCA UPDATE  

 

 

Representatives from the Golf Mecca will present a second option to the Board.   



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To:  Board of Park Commissioners 

From: Liza McElroy, Executive Director  

Date:  June 14, 2018 

Subject: HIGHLAND PARK COUNTRY CLUB – REVIEW  

 

Background: 
  
Attorney Bush, President Kaplan, and Executive Director McElroy will provide an update on the four draft 
agreements pertaining to the disposition of the Highland Park Country Club. Since the last Committee 
meeting which was a joint meeting between the Park Board and the City Council, the Park District 
Executive Director, City Manager and their respective corporation counsel met to discuss the changes as a 
result of the feedback and directive of the corporate authorities from the joint meeting. The draft 
agreements were updated based on the joint meeting with the City and the subsequent staff/attorney 
meetings. 
 
On December 14, 2017, the Park Board approved a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
between the Park District of Highland Park and The City pertaining to the disposition of the Highland Park 
Country Club (HPCC) property. The MOU outlined the basic terms and conditions for the seven lots that 
make up the HPCC.  
 
The parties reached preliminary agreement that would entail the City selling the golf course (Lots 1, 2, 6 & 
7) to the Park District and retaining ownership of the balance of the property, including the HPCC property 
off Rt. 41, known as Lot 3.  The Park District would transform the green space into a nature preserve, 
“Passive Natural Area”.  The Park District would continue to manage banquet operations for 2018; 
thereafter the City would manage banquet operations through a third-party contractor. The Park District 
would also continue to manage the activities on Lot 3. Based on the policy guidance provided for the 
disposition of the property, Park District and City representatives met on several occasions since the MOU 
was adopted to discuss terms and conditions of the proposed governing documents. The Park District 
discussed the proposed agreements at the Special Board meeting on May 16, 2018 and again when 
invited to a joint meeting with the City on May 29, 2018. 
 
The four agreements pertaining to the disposition of the Highland Park Country Club are as follows: 

1. Intergovernmental Agreement for the Transfer of Property (golf course, Lots 1, 2, 6 & 7) – 
This agreement addresses the conditions for the sale of property from the City to the Park 
District and identifies the Park District’s intent to convert the golf course to a natural passive 
area. 



2 
 

2. Tree Nursery Lease Agreement – This is a separate agreement that addresses the conditions 
for the City’s proposed tree nursery that would be located on Lot 1 (part of the golf course). 

3. Shared Use Agreement (Lot 4) – The City will continue to own the Country Club building 
and the Parking Lot. Currently, banquet operations are being managed by the Park District 
pursuant to a lease between the City and District. Banquet services will remain in operation in 
2019. This agreement addresses the shared use of the building and parking lot which includes 
banquet operations and general maintenance of the facility. 

4. Lease Agreement (Lot 3) – The City will continue to own the land along Rt. 41 as part of the Club 
property. This agreement addresses the arrangement for the Park District to operate the 
Learning Center which includes the Driving Range, Mini Golf and includes the transfer of the 
Dome. 

 
Once the parties have reached agreement on the drafts, it is recommended that the agreements be 
finalized and formally considered at the Park Board meeting and City meetings in late June 
or July. 
  



June 3,6, 2018

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR
TRANSFER OF PROPERTY

BY THE CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK TO
THE PARK DISTRICT OF HIGHLAND PARK

(Lots 1, 2, 6, and 7 of Highland Park Country Club)

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is dated as of __________, 2018

(“Execution Date”) and is made by the City of Highland Park, an Illinois municipal

corporation (“City”), and the Park District of Highland Park, an Illinois park district

(“Park District” or “District”).  The City and Park District shall from time to time be

referred to collectively as the “Parties.”

Section 1. Recitals

A. The City is the fee simple owner of record of the property commonly

known as the Highland Park Country Club, and legally described in Exhibit A attached

hereto (“Property”).

B. The Property is subdivided into seven lots pursuant to the Highland Park

Golf Course Plat of Resubdivision recorded November 10, 2004 as document number

5679534, in Lake County, Illinois (“Plat”) (for purposes of this Agreement, any

references to Lots 1 through 7 in this Agreement shall mean Lots 1 through 7 as identified

on the Plat).  A depiction of the Property and the respective Lots is attached hereto as

Exhibit B.

C. On September 30, 1996, the Parties entered into an Intergovernmental

Agreement for the Exchange, Improvement, Lease and Management of Real Estate,

which has been amended by the parties by the First, Second, Third, Fourth, Fifth, and

Sixth Amendments (collectively, the “Master Agreement”), which provided, among other

things, for the City to lease to the District for a period of 99 years, the Property together

 1



June 3,6, 2018

with all improvements and other assets, real and personal, located thereon upon the

repayment of the “City’s Debt” (as that term is defined in the Master Agreement).

D. Pursuant to the Master Agreement, the City’s Debt was repaid and the

District entered into that certain Intergovernmental Lease Agreement dated December 31,

2014 (“Country Club Lease”) to lease from the City the Property.

E. The City desires to sell and the District desires to purchase Lots 1, 2, 6 and

7 of the Resubdivision of the Highland Park Country Club (the “Transfer Property”).

F. The City and the Park District have the authority to complete this transfer

and lease under the Illinois Local Government Property Transfer Act, 50 ILCS 605/0.01,

et seq. (Property Transfer Act) and the Illinois Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5

ILCS 220/1, et seq.

Section 2. Transfer Property to Park District

A. For and in consideration of the mutual covenants described herein and

other good and valuable consideration, the Park District agrees to purchase from the City

and the City agrees to sell to the Park District the Transfer Property.

B. The City will transfer to the Park District all of the City’s right, title, and

interest in and to the Transfer Property by delivering to the Park District a fully executed,

recordable special warranty deed subject only to the Transfer Property Permitted

Exceptions as defined in Section 4 of this Agreement and the lease defined in paragraph

G below.

C. The closing date for the conveyance of the Transfer Property to the District

will be no later than _________________, 2018 , or such other date as may be mutually

agreed by the Parties (“Closing Date”).

 2



June 3,6, 2018

D. The purchase price for Transfer Property shall be Five Hundred Thousand

Dollars ($500,000.00), and shall be delivered at Closing by immediately available funds.

E. The sale of the Transfer Property and any other transactions contemplated

hereby shall be consummated by a deed and money escrow at the office of the Title

Company.  Possession will be delivered by City to Park District at Closing.

F. Personal Property.  Upon Closing, and in consideration for $10.00, the

City will convey by bill of sale to the Park District all personal property located on the

Transfer Property, as more specifically described in Exhibit C attached hereto and

incorporated by reference (the “Personal Property”).

G. Lease Back.  The District shall lease back at no cost to the City a territory

in the northwest portion of Lot 1 of the Transfer Property and immediately south of and

adjacent to the City’s Public Services Center, in a specific location, for use by the City as

a forestry nursery (the “Nursery Property”), pursuant to and as shown in Exhibit F.  If

either party requests a survey, the cost shall be borne by the City.  The lease shall

commence on the date of Closing for a term of 99 years except as otherwise provided in

the Lease Agreement executed by the Parties.

Section 3. Contingencies.  The City will have no obligation to convey the Transfer

Property to the District, and the District shall have no obligation to purchase the Transfer

Property from the City, prior to the satisfaction of each and all of the following

conditions:

The Park District has taken all necessary and appropriate actions under theA.

Property Transfer Act to purchase the Transfer Property and grant the City authority to

convey and warrant to the Park District the Transfer Property.

 3



June 3,6, 2018

The City has taken all necessary and appropriate actions under theB.

Property Transfer Act to authorize the sale of the Transfer Property to the Park District.

The District has, at its cost and expense, completed an All AppropriateC.

Inquiry Phase I Environmental Assessment, consistent with ASTM Standard 1527-05,

which provides an opinion that does not identify conditions indicative of releases or

threatened releases of hazardous substances on, at, in, or to the Transfer Property.

The District shall deliver to the City a restrictive covenant, in a formD.

attached hereto as Exhibit ____ and appropriate for recordation, providing thatcontaining

the following four covenants:

1. Restriction on Sale or Transfer.  A covenant that provides that, subject to

the limitations herein, title to the Transfer Property will, upon written demand

from City and failure to cease its attempt by District, revert to the City in the event

that the District attempts to convey, lease, license, or assign any portion of the

Transfer Property to either (a) a governmental entity without the prior written

consent of the City, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, or (b) a

non-governmental third party entity without the prior written consent of the City,

which consent may be withheld in the sole discretion of the Corporate Authorities

of the City.  In the event of such automatic reversion, the City shall pay back to

the District an amount that is the exact amount of the Purchase Price.

2. Storm Water Management.  A covenant that memorializes the respective

obligations of the Parties set forth in Section 9 of this Agreement concerning

future storm water management on the Transfer Property.

 4



June 3,6, 2018

3. Future Use of Existing Golf Holes 13 and 14.  A covenant that

acknowledges the right of the District to use the property on which Golf Holes 13

and 14 are located as part of the “Enterprise Property” as defined in the Lot 3

lease agreement referenced in Section 3.E of this Agreement.

4. Maintenance Contracts.  A covenant that acknowledges the right of the

District to enter into contracts with third party venders to provide maintenance

services on the Transfer Property.

The Parties shall have entered into a lease agreement, effective as of theE.

Closing Date, for the lease by the District from the City of Lot 3 of the Resubdivision of

the Highland Park Country Club.

The Parties shall have entered into a Shared Facilities Agreement,F.

effective as of the Closing Date, for the building and facilities on Lot 4 of the

Resubdivision of the Highland Park Country Club attached as Exhibit ____.

The Parties shall have entered into an agreement by which the CountyG.

Club Lease is terminated, effective as of the Closing Date.

The Parties shall have entered into a lease agreement, effective as of theH.

Closing Date, for the lease by the City from the District of the Nursery Property attached

as Exhibit _____.

The City shall have provided or cause to be provided a permanentI.

easement and right-of-way across any property over, through and across which the bicycle

and pedestrian path currently runs from Park Avenue West through Highland Park Woods

(Lot 2) to Half Day Road/Illinois Route 22, attached as Exhibit ____.  In regard to the

golf cart and pedestrian easement described on the Plat of Subdivision for The Hybernia

 5



June 3,6, 2018

Club (now known as The Legacy Club), recorded as document number 4277501 (the

“Legacy Easement”), the City shall (i) cause the Title Company to insure that the use of

the Legacy Easement can continue after the Transfer Property is no longer used for golf

course purposes, and (ii) record or cause to be recorded a covenant providing that the City

shall not grant consent to any rules and regulations related to the use of the Legacy

Easement without first obtaining the written consent of the Park District, which consent

may be granted or denied in the Park District’s sole discretion.

J. The Parties shall have entered into an agreement, in a form appropriate for

recordation, which memorializes their respective obligations described in Section 9 below

(the “Storm Water Agreement”).

K. The City shall not have impressed the Transfer Property with any use orJ.

zoning restrictions or encumbrances, without the District’s prior written consent, which

did not exist on and before December 14, 2017.

K. A permanent blanket utility easement (see Exhibit ___) shall have been

recorded against the Transfer Property for the purpose of allowing the continued

existence and operation of public and private water, sewer, cable, electrical, gas, and

telecommunication equipment and facilities, including maintenance, repair, and

replacement, running to the benefit of the City, and others who have placed facilities

under the Transfer Property under an agreement, permit, license or franchise.

Notwithstanding the foregoing the blanket utility easement shall also include the right of

the City and its contractors to install, maintain, repair and replace a new fiber optic cable

under the Transfer Property on or around the location described in Exhibit G.  The

blanket utility easement shall not allow for the installation of any above ground utilities

 6



June 3,6, 2018

without the prior written consent of the District, which consent shall not be unreasonably

withheld.  The blanket utility easement shall include standard provisions for the

performance of restoration work in connection with the installation, repair, replacement,

or removal of any equipment or facilities

Section 4.  Title Insurance; Survey

A. The City has obtained and delivered to the District, at the City’s sole

expense, a title commitment (and will cause subsequent issuance of an Owner’s Title

Policy) from Chicago Title Insurance Company (Title Company) dated after the

Execution Date for an ALTA Commitment Form for the Transfer Property in the amount

of the Purchase Price, together with copies of all recorded documents referred to therein

(“Transfer Property Title Commitment”).  If, not less than 10 days prior to the Closing,

the Park District notifies the City in writing about exceptions to title disclosed by the

Transfer Property Title Commitment that are objectionable, then the parties will promptly

take all necessary actions to have those title defects cured or insured over, and the City

and the Park District will extend the date of the closing until the exceptions have been

removed or the Title Company has agreed to insure over those title defects.  If the City

determines that it is not able to, or that it is not in the best interest of the City to, cure or

insure over those title defects, the City shall have the right to terminate this Agreement.

All exceptions to title disclosed by the Transfer Property Title Commitment to which the

Park District fails to object or to which it acquiesces after objecting shall be considered

“Transfer Property Permitted Exceptions.”  The Transfer Property Permitted Exceptions

shall include, but not be limited to, those exceptions described in Exhibit D, attached

hereto and incorporated by reference.

 7



June 3,6, 2018

B. The City has obtained and delivered to the District, at the City’s expense, a

survey of the Transfer Property.  If, not less than 10 days prior to the Closing, the Park

District notifies the City in writing about exceptions to title disclosed by the survey that

are objectionable, then the parties will promptly take all necessary actions to have those

title defects cured or insured over, and the City and the Park District will extend the date

of the closing until the exceptions have been removed or the Title Company has agreed to

insure over those title defects.  If the City determines that it is not able to, or that it is not

in the best interest of the City to, cure or insure over those title defects, the City shall

have the right to terminate this Agreement All exceptions to title disclosed by the survey

to which the Park District fails to object or to which it acquiesces after objecting shall be

considered “Transfer Property Permitted Exceptions.”

Section 5. Closing; Costs

The City and the Park District each will execute and deliver to the other such

documents as may be reasonably requested to consummate the Closing, including but not

limited to execution of all necessary forms from the Title Company to effectuate a

closing, including without limitation an ALTA Statement and PTAX-203. The costs

relating to the Closing will be borne equally both parties, and the Park District will bear

the cost of recording the deed.  All documents described in Section 3 which are intended

to be recorded shall be delivered to Closing and be recorded together with the special

warranty deed, and the recording cost shall be shared by the Parties.

Section 6. Real Estate Taxes and Assessments

 8



June 3,6, 2018

The City represents that the Transfer Property currently is exempt from real estate

taxes because of its ownership by the City.  The City further represents that, as of the date

of Closing, no real estate taxes or assessments should be due or payable at the Closing.

Section 7. Representations and Warranties of City

The City represents and warrants to the Park District that, as of the date of this

Agreement and the date of the Closing:

A. The City owns fee simple title to the Transfer Property;

B. The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of the City, and executing

and delivering any other agreement or other item contemplated by this

Agreement or otherwise required to fulfill the City’s obligations

hereunder, have full authority to bind the City to such obligations and to so

act on behalf of the City;

C. There are no persons in possession of, or having a right to possession of,

any part of the Transfer Property other than the City;

D. The City has the authority and the legal right to make, deliver, and perform

this Agreement and has taken all necessary actions and obtained all

required consents and approvals to authorize the execution, delivery, and

performance of this Agreement;

E. The City has not entered into any options, purchase and sale agreements,

leases, service contracts, or other contracts affecting the Transfer Property

other than this Agreement;

F. The execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement is not

prohibited by any requirement of law or under any contractual obligation

 9



June 3,6, 2018

of the City, will not result in a breach or default under any agreement to

which the City is a party or to which the City is bound, and will not violate

any restriction, court order, or agreement to which the City is subject;

G. The City has not received any violation notices from any governmental

authority with respect to the Transfer Property that have not been

corrected.

Section 8. Representations and Warranties of Park District

The Park District represents and warrants to the City that, as of the date of this

Agreement and the date of the Closing:

A. The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of the Park District, and

executing and delivering any other agreement or other item contemplated

by this Agreement or otherwise required to fulfill the Park District’s

obligations hereunder, have full authority to bind the Park District to such

obligations and to so act on behalf of the Park District ;

B. The Park District has the authority and the legal right to make, deliver, and

perform this Agreement and has taken all necessary actions and obtained

all required consents and approvals to authorize the execution, delivery,

and performance of this Agreement; and

C. The execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement are not

prohibited by any requirement of law or under any contractual obligation

of the Park District, will not result in a breach or default under any

agreement to which the Park District is a party or to which the Park

10



June 3,6, 2018

District is bound, and will not violate any restriction, court order, or

agreement to which the Park District is subject.

Section 9. Stormwater Management.

Following the closing, if the United States Army Corp of Engineers or other

agencies are engaged in Phase 1 or Phase 2 engineering to develop specific plans for a

regional storm water management program, the District and the City will be made a party

to all planning undertaken by the United States Army Corp of Engineers, Lake County

and/or other agencies (collectively “Agencies”) to allow portions of Lot 1 and Lot 2 of the

Transfer Property to be used for regional storm water management purposes, subject to

following limitations and conditions:

1. Storm water management improvements shall be constructed at no

expense to the Park District.

2. In the event required stormwater management improvements do

significantly adversely impact the Park District’s use of any portion

of the Property, the Park District shall be entitled to seek

compensation from the appropriate Agency of all damages to

which the Park District is reasonably entitled under any then

effective  state or federal laws.

3. In the event storm water management improvements cause the

need to relocate, repair or replace any trails in a way which does

not destroy connectivity, the cost for relocating, raising or

replacing the trails and any other physical improvements shall not

11



June 3,6, 2018

be borne by the Park District, but by the Agency requesting the

change.

Section 10.  Development and Construction of Passive Natural Area.  It is the

District’s intent to plan, develop and use the Transfer Property as a Passive Natural Area .

The District has represented to the City that it intends to invest approximately $1.4

Million Dollars to transform the Transfer Property into the Passive Natural Area, and the

City relied on such representation in entering into this Agreement and in causing the

Transfer Property to be conveyed to the District for the Purchase Price.  Such investment

may be from cash on hand, grants, bequests, in-kind services or other valuable sources.

The District agrees that the construction of the Passive Natural Area will be complete and

fully operational within four years after the Closing Date, subject to force majeure.

Within one year  after the Closing Date, the District shall present to the City, for its

review and comment, a status report on the progress of the development and construction

of the Passive Natural Area.

Section 11. Accuracy of Representations as of Closing; Survival

As a condition to the Closing for the benefit of each party, the representations and

warranties of each party in Sections 7, 8, 9, and 10 of this Agreement must be true and

correct at the time of the Closing. Each party must promptly notify the other in the event

that either party has actual knowledge that a representation or warranty of that party set

forth in Section 7 or 8 is not true and correct. The representations, warranties and

agreements in Sections 7, 8, 9 and 10 of this Agreement will survive and shall not merge

with the deed after Closing.

Section 12.  Default/Remedy

12



June 3,6, 2018

A. City Default. In the event of a default by City in the performance or

observance of any of City’s duties or obligations herein contained, and upon the failure of

City to cure such default within ten (10) days following written notice thereof from Park

District (or such longer period of time as may be necessary to cure such default by

applying consistent, uninterrupted diligence), Park District may pursue all available legal

and equitable remedies.

B. Park District Default.  In the event of a default by Park District in the

performance or observance of any of Park District’s duties or obligations herein

contained, and upon the failure of Park District to cure such default within ten (10) days

following written notice thereof from City (or such longer period of time as may be

necessary to cure such default by applying consistent, uninterrupted diligence), City may

pursue all available legal and equitable remedies.

Section 13. General Provisions

A. Notice.  Any notice or communication required or permitted to be given

under this Agreement must be in writing and be delivered (1) personally, (2) by a

reputable overnight courier, (3) by certified mail, return receipt requested, and deposited

in the U.S. Mail, postage prepaid, or (4) by other electronic means. Notices will be

deemed delivered on the date of actual receipt during normal business hours. By notice

complying with the requirements of this Section, each party has the right to change the

address or the addressee, or both, for all future notices and communications to such party,

but no notice of a change of addressee or address will be effective until actually received.

Notices and communications to the Park District must be addressed to, and

delivered at, the following address:

13



June 3,6, 2018

Park District of Highland Park
Attention: Liza McElroy, Executive Director
636 Ridge Road
Highland Park, IL 60035
email: lmcelroy@pdhp.org

With a copy to: Ancel, Glink
140 South Dearborn, Suite 600
Chicago, IL 60603
Attention: Robert Bush
email:  rbush@ancelglink.com

Notices and communications to the City must be addressed to, and delivered at,

the following address:

City of Highland Park
Attention: Ghida S. Neukirch, City Manager
1707 St. Johns Avenue
Highland Park, IL 60035
email:  gneukirch@cityhpil.com

With a copy to: Holland & Knight LLP
131 S. Dearborn Street, 30th Floor
Chicago, IL 60603
Attention: Steven Elrod
Email; steven.elrod@hklaw.com

B. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence in the performance of all

terms and provisions of this Agreement.

C. Governing Law. This Agreement is governed by and enforced in

accordance with the internal laws of, but not the conflicts of laws rules of, the State of

Illinois.

D. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement

between the parties with respect to the acquisition by the Park District of the Transfer

Property, and this Agreement supersedes every prior agreement and negotiation between

the parties, whether written or oral, relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.

14



June 3,6, 2018

E. Incorporation of Exhibits. Exhibits A through G attached to this

Agreement are incorporated into and made a part of this Agreement by this reference.

F. Amendments and Modifications. No amendment or modification to this

Agreement will be effective unless and until it is reduced to writing and approved and

executed by all parties to this Agreement in accordance with all applicable statutory

procedures.

G. Calendar Days and Time. Any reference herein to a “day” or to “days”

means a calendar day or days and not a business day or days.

H. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. No claim as a third-party beneficiary

under this Agreement by any person, firm, or corporation may be made, or be valid,

against any of the parties.

I. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be held in default under, or in

noncompliance with, the provisions of the Agreement, nor suffer any enforcement or

penalty relating to noncompliance or default (including liquidated damages, termination,

cancellation or revocation), where such noncompliance or alleged defaults occurred or

were caused by “Force Majeure,” defined as a strike, riot, war, earthquake, flood, tidal

wave, unusually severe rain or snow storm, hurricane, tornado or other catastrophic act of

nature, labor disputes, or other event that is reasonably beyond the party’s ability to

anticipate or control. Non-compliance or default attributable to Force Majeure shall be

corrected as soon as practicable. The party suffering the Force Majeure shall send notice

as soon as reasonably practicable following the onset and conclusion of the Force

Majeure.

15



June 3,6, 2018

J. As-Is, Where-Is.  THE DISTRICT, HAVING BEEN IN POSSESSION

OF THE TRANSFER PROPERTY FOR THE PAST THREE YEARS, AND IN

CONSIDERATION OF THE PURCHASE PRICE, AGREES TO ACCEPT THE

SUBJECT PROPERTY IN ITS "AS-IS", “WHERE IS” CONDITION, WITH ALL

FAULTS, AS OF THE CLOSING DATE.  OTHER THAN MAY BE SPECIFICALLY

SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT, THE CITY HAS NOT MADE, OR

AUTHORIZED ANYONE TO MAKE, ANY WARRANTY OR REPRESENTATION

ABOUT THE PRESENT OR FUTURE PHYSICAL OR ENVIRONMENTAL

CONDITION, DEVELOPMENT POTENTIAL, ZONING, OPERATION, INCOME

GENERATED BY, OR ANY OTHER MATTER OR THING AFFECTING OR

RELATING TO THE TRANSFER PROPERTY OR ANY MATTER OR THING

PERTAINING TO THIS AGREEMENT AND NO SUCH REPRESENTATION OR

WARRANTY SHALL BE IMPLIED OR ARISE BY OPERATION OF LAW,

INCLUDING ANY WARRANTY OF CONDITION, HABITABILITY,

MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.  THE

DISTRICT EXPRESSLY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT (A) OTHER THAN MAY BE

SPECIFICALLY SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT, NO SUCH WARRANTY OR

REPRESENTATION HAS BEEN MADE AND THAT THE DISTRICT IS NOT

RELYING ON ANY WARRANTY OR REPRESENTATION WHATSOEVER OTHER

THAN MAY BE SPECIFICALLY SET FORTH OF THIS AGREEMENT, AND (B)

THE DISTRICT, HAVING HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO MAKE AN

INDEPENDENT INVESTIGATION AND EXAMINATION OF THE TRANSFER

16



June 3,6, 2018

PROPERTY AND ALL MATTERS RELATED THERETO, IS RELYING SOLELY ON

ITS OWN INVESTIGATION THEREOF.  THE TERMS OF THIS SECTION 13.J

SHALL SURVIVE THE CLOSING OR TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT.

THE ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROPERTY BY THE PARK DISTRICT IN “AS-IS”

CONDITION AND “SUBJECT TO ALL FAULTS” DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN

INDEMNIFICATION OF THE CITY OR A HOLD HARMLESS PROVISION IN

FAVOR OF THE CITY AND EACH PARTY SHALL BEAR THEIR OWN

RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY ENVIRONMENTAL LIABILITIES CREATED BY

EACH SUCH PARTY.

(a) (1) It is understood that a portion of the Transfer Property is located over a “capped”

City landfill.  Notwithstanding any language to the contrary elsewhere contained

in this Agreement, the District shall not be liable to the City or any person, firm or

corporation acting on behalf of the City or its contractors for any damage, loss,

expense, response cost or liability, including consultant fees and attorneys’ fees,

resulting from the presence of hazardous substances on, under or around the

Transfer Property or resulting from hazardous substances being generated, stored,

disposed of or transported to, on, under or around the Transfer Property by the

City, its contractors, predecessors in title, or any other third party acting at the

request or on behalf of the City unless caused by the acts of the District.  .

(b) (2) For purposes of this Agreement, “Hazardous Substances” shall mean (i) any

substance which contains gasoline, diesel fuel or other petroleum hydrocarbons,

(ii) any substance which is flammable, radioactive, corrosive or carcinogenic, (iii)

any substance the presence of which the Transfer Property causes or threatens to

17



June 3,6, 2018

cause a nuisance or health hazard affecting human health, the environment, the

Transfer Property or property adjacent thereto, or (iv) any substance the presence

of which on the Transfer Property requires investigation or remediation under any

hazardous substance law, as the same may hereafter be amended. “Hazardous

Substance Law” means the Comprehensive Environmental Response,

Compensation, and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. 9601 et seq.; the Resource

Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. 9601 et seq.; the Hazardous Materials

Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. 1801 et seq.; the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. 1251

et seq.; the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. 7401 et seq.; the Federal Insecticide,

Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act, 7 U.S.C. 136 et seq.; the Toxic Substance

Control Act, 15 U.S.C. 2601 et seq.; the Emergency Planning and Community

Right to Know Act (SARA Title III) 42 U.S.C. 11001 et seq.; and any applicable

state law or regulation.

(3) To the fullest extent permitted by law, the District shall indemnify and hold

harmless the City and its officers, officials, employees, volunteers and agents from

and against all claims, damages losses and expenses, including, but not limited to,

legal fees (attorney’s and paralegal’s fees, expert fees and court costs), arising out

of or resulting from the actions of the District with respect to the Transfer

Property provided that any such claim, damage, loss or expense is attributable to

bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or injury to or destruction of property,

other than the Transfer Property itself, including the loss of use resulting

therefrom, to the extent it is caused in whole or in part by any wrongful or

negligent act or omission of the District or anyone for whose acts the District may

18



June 3,6, 2018

be liable.  Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge or otherwise

reduce any other right to indemnity which the City would otherwise have.

(4) To the fullest extent permitted by law, the City shall indemnify and hold harmless

the District and its officers, officials, employees, volunteers and agents from and

against all claims, damages losses and expenses, including, but not limited to,

legal fees (attorney’s and paralegal’s fees, expert fees and court costs), arising out

of or resulting from the actions of the City with respect to the Transfer Property

provided that any such claim, damage, loss or expense is attributable to bodily

injury, sickness, disease or death, or injury to or destruction of property, including

the loss of use resulting therefrom, to the extent it is caused in whole or in part by

any wrongful or negligent act or omission of the City or anyone for whose acts the

City may be liable.  Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge or

otherwise reduce any other right to indemnity which the District would otherwise

have.  

K. Execution of Other Documents. The Parties agree to cooperate in good

faith to complete and execute any additional documents that may be necessary to

effectuate the conveyance of the Transfer Property to the District or that may be required

under applicable federal, state, or local laws, statutes, regulations, or ordinances related to

such conveyance. Specifically, and without limitation of the foregoing, prior to the

Closing Date, the Parties shall adopt appropriate resolutions or ordinances approving the

conveyances contemplated by this Agreement and as required by the Illinois Local

Government Property Transfer Act, 50 ILCS 601/0.01, et seq.

19



June 3,6, 2018

L No Real Estate Broker. The Parties acknowledge, warrant, and agree that

neither Party has dealt with a broker or consultant in connection with the conveyance of

the Transfer Property to the District, and that no person or entity is entitled to a broker’s

fee, finder’s fees, or commission in connection with the conveyance of the Transfer

Property to the District.

M. Casualty/Condemnation.  City shall bear all risk of loss prior to Closing.

In the event of any casualty or the commencement or threat of condemnation proceedings

affecting the Transfer Property occurs prior to Closing, the City shall give the Park

District notice of such event within five (5) days.  Within five (5) days from receipt of

notice, the Park District may elect to cancel this agreement and terminate the transfer of

the Transfer Property.

Section 14. No Disqualifications

A. Patriot Act.  The City and the Park District each represents and warrants

that it is not acting, directly or indirectly, for or on behalf of any person, group, entity, or

nation named by the United States Treasury Department as a Specially Designated

National and Blocked Person, or for or on behalf of any person, group, entity, or nation

designated in Presidential Executive Order 13224 as a person who commits, threatens to

commit, or supports terrorism; and that it is not engaged in this transaction directly or

indirectly on behalf of, or facilitating this transaction directly or indirectly on behalf of,

any such person, group, entity, or nation.

B. Debarment.  The Parties hereby certify that they are not barred from

entering into this Agreement as a result of a violation of either Section 33E-3 or Section

20



June 3,6, 2018

33E-4 of the Illinois Criminal Code and that each Party has a written sexual harassment

policy in place in full compliance with 775 ILCS 5/2-105(A)(4).

Section 15.  Master Agreement.

To the extent there are any inconsistencies between the Master Agreement and

this document, this document shall control.

21



June 3,6, 2018

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the
Execution Date.

PARK DISTRICT OF HIGHLAND PARK

Signature: ____ ___________________________________________________________
Printed Name: ___________________________________________________________
Title: President

Attest:

Signature:_______________________________________________________________
Printed Name: ___________________________________________________________
Title: Secretary

CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK

Signature: ___________________________________________________________
Printed Name: ___________________________________________________________
Title: Mayor

Attest:

Signature: ___________________________________________________________
Printed Name: ___________________________________________________________
Title: City Clerk

22



June 3,6, 2018

EXHIBIT “A”--- Legal Description of the Property

23



June 3,6, 2018

EXHIBIT “B”---Graphic depiction of Property and Lots

24



June 3,6, 2018

EXHIBIT “C” --- Personal Property Schedule

25



June 3,6, 2018

EXHIBIT “D”---Permitted Exceptions

That certain Grant of Conservation Right and Easement by and between the City1.

of Highland Park and the Lake County Forest Preserve District dated June 18,
2002 and recorded with the Lake Country Recorder of Deeds as document
number 5080789.

That certain Grant of Conservation Right and Easement by and between the City2.

of Highland Park and the Lake County Forest Preserve District dated June 19,
2002 and recorded with the Lake Country Recorder of Deeds as document
number 5080790.

That certain First Amendment to Grant of Conservation Right and Easement3.

by and between the City of Highland Park and the Lake County Forest
Preserve District dated April 25, 2005 and recorded with the Lake Country
Recorder of Deeds as document numbers 5776326 and 5776327.

[LIST OF MATTERS OF RECORD SET FORTH IN TITLE REPORT, IF ANY -4.

- TO BE ADDED]

26



June 3,6, 2018

EXHIBIT “E”---Insurance Requirements for Property

A. Minimum Scope of Insurance

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage ("occurrence" form1.
CG 0001 7/98) or Insurance Services Offices form number GL 0002 covering
Commercial General Liability.

Insurance Services Office Business Auto coverage form number CA 0001 10132.
covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 "any auto."

B. Minimum Limits of Insurance 

CITY shall maintain limits no less than:

General Liability/Excess Liability: $3,000,000 combined single limit per1.
occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. The general
aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

Automobile Liability/Excess Liability: $3,000,000 combined single limit per accident2.
for bodily injury and property damage including coverages for owned, hired or
non-owned vehicles as applicable.

If A.3 is applicable, liquor liability limits of $3,000,000 per occurrence combined single3.
limit.

The amount of coverage required hereby may be provided by any combination of4.
primary and excess or umbrella liability insurance policies.

C. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions 

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be approved by the Parties. The $25,000
general liability deductible per occurrence must be approved.

D. Other Insurance Provisions 

The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

1. General Liability, Automobile Liability and Liquor Liability
District, its officers, officials, employees, and agents are to be covereda.
as additional insureds as respects: liability.

27



June 3,6, 2018

The insurance coverage provided under this Lease shall be primaryb.
insurance as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees, and
agents. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by District, its
officers, officials, employees, or agents shall be excess of CITY's
insurance and shall not contribute with it.

Coverage shall state that the CITY's insurance shall apply separately toc.
each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with
respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

Acceptability of InsurersE.

Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's rating of no less than A: VII and
licensed to do business in Illinois.  Alternatively, the insurance may be obtained from an
intergovernmental self-insurance risk agency or pool.

Verification of CoverageF.

Prior to commencement of the Term, CITY shall furnish District with certificates of
insurance and with original endorsements if applicable effecting coverage required by
this clause. The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed
by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.

28



June 3,6, 2018

Exhibit F
–

Depiction of Nursery Property

29



June 3,6, 2018

EXHIBIT G

LOCATION OF FIBER OPTIC CABLE EASEMENT

#58099650_v12

30



Document comparison by Workshare Compare on Wednesday, June 06, 2018
9:25:38 PM

Input:

Document 1 ID interwovenSite://HKDMS/Active/58099650/1

Description
#58099650v1<Active> - HPCC Transfer Agreement -
Elrod 06-03-18

Document 2 ID interwovenSite://HKDMS/Active/58099650/2

Description
#58099650v2<Active> - HPCC Transfer Agreement -
Elrod 06-03-18

Rendering set Standard

Legend:

Insertion 

Deletion 

Moved from 

Moved to 

Style change

Format change

Moved deletion 

Inserted cell

Deleted cell

Moved cell

Split/Merged cell

Padding cell

Statistics:

Count

Insertions 20

Deletions 7

Moved from 0

Moved to 0

Style change 0

Format changed 0

Total changes 27



May 23, 2018 

1 

 

 
LEASE AGREEMENT  

BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK AND  
THE PARK DISTRICT OF HIGHLAND PARK 

 
(Tree Nursery) 

This Intergovernmental Lease Agreement (the "Lease") is entered into as of __________, 

2018, the “effective date” (as defined below) between the City of Highland Park, an Illinois 

home rule municipality (the "City"), and the Park District of Highland Park, a unit of local 

government of the State of Illinois (the "District" or “Park District”). The City and the District 

are sometimes hereinafter referred to individually as a "Party" or jointly as the "Parties"; 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the City is the fee simple owner of record of the property commonly known 

as the Highland Park Country Club (“Property”); and 

WHEREAS, the Property is subdivided into seven lots pursuant to the Highland Park 

Golf Course Plat of Resubdivision recorded November 10, 2004 as document number 5679534, 

in Lake County, Illinois (“Plat”) (for purposes of this Lease, any references to Lots 1 through 7 

in this Lease shall mean Lots 1 through 7 as identified on the Plat); and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to sell and the District desires to purchase Lots 1, 2, 6 and 7 

of the Resubdivision of the Highland Park Country Club (the “Transfer Property”); and 

WHEREAS, the City has sold to the District Lots 1, 2, 6 and 7 of the Resubdivision of 

the Highland Park Country Club (the “Transfer Property”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to that certainthe purchase and sale agreement for the Transfer 

Property, the District shall lease back to the City a territory no greater than four (4) acres in the 

northwest portion of Lot 1 of the Transfer Property and immediately south of and adjacent to the 

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight



May 23, 2018 

2 

 

City’s Public Services Center, in the specific location depicted in Exhibit A (the “Nursery 

Property”) for use by the City as a forestry nursery; and 

WHEREAS, the City and the Park District have the authority to complete this transfer 

and lease under the Illinois Local Government Property Transfer Act, 50 ILCS 605/0.01, et seq. 

(Property Transfer Act) and the Illinois Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/1, et 

seq. 

WHEREAS, prior to the execution hereof each of the Parties has taken all action 

necessary under the Local Governmental Property Transfer Act to authorize its entry into this 

Lease. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and provisions contained 

in this Lease, and for other valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are 

acknowledged hereby, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Nursery Property.  The District leases to the City and the City leases from the District for 

the term stated in paragraph 2, the Nursery Property.   

2. Term.  Unless sooner terminated in accordance with paragraph 13, below, the term of this 

Lease shall be for a term commencing on the date of closing for the conveyance of the 

Transfer Property from the City to the District (the “Effective Date”) and ending on 

December 31, 2116 (the "Term").  Upon the expiration date, the Term shall renew for 

successive ten (10) year renewal terms unless either Party gives notice of its intent not to 

renew no more than one (1) year and not less than 180 days prior to the expiration date 

for the Term or renewal term; provided, that if the City is still operating the Nursery 

Property consistent with Section 4 hereof the District may not terminate the Lease 

without the City’s consent.  The parties understand that during the term of this Lease 

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight



May 23, 2018 

3 

 

circumstances may change so as to suggest alteration of the agreement to be in the best 

interests of the parties and the community.  Therefore, during the year of every ten year 

anniversary of this agreement, the parties shall meet to discuss whether amending this 

Lease in any way would be in the best interests of the parties and the community.  In the 

absence of any agreed upon changes, the Lease shall remain in full force and effect.  In 

addition, if the parties shall mutually agree, such meetings may occur more frequently 

than every ten years. 

3. Annual Rent.  As rent for the Nursery Property, the City shall be responsible, at its sole 

expense, for all operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of any or all of the 

Nursery Property and the improvements located thereon or later added thereto. Without 

limiting the foregoing obligations, the general maintenance of the Nursery 

Property shall include keeping the Nursery Property in a clean condition, free of 

accumulations of rubbish and unlawful obstructions as well as provide landscaping and 

exterior maintenance of all of the grounds and complying with Exhibit B. 

4. Use.  Except as otherwise provided herein or with the District’s prior written consent, 

which consent may be withheld in the District’s sole discretion, the City shall operate the 

Nursery Property as a tree nursery, subject to the condition set forth below: 

a. Within 90 days following the date of Closing, tThe terms and conditions of the 

City’s use of the Nursery Property shall beare set forth in a document to be 

prepared by the staffs for the District and the City andon attached hereto as 

Exhibit BD; 

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight



May 23, 2018 

4 

 

b. The Nursery Property shall be available to the District, its officers, employees, 

invitees and guests for educational purposes, provided such educational use shall 

not unreasonably interfere with the City's use of the Nursery Property; 

c. The City shall not store or stage equipment on the Nursery Property when it is not 

needed for active nursery operations; 

d. The City shall cooperate with the District to provide vehicular and pedestrian 

access, solely for maintenance purposes, from the Public Services Center across 

the Nursery Property to Lot 1; 

e. The City shall consult with the District to design the nursery so that it is 

aesthetically and functionally integrated into the passive natural area located 

around the Nursery Property; and 

f. The City shall operate the Nursery Property in a manner which is not inconsistent 

with the conservation easements and use restrictions described in Exhibit C. 

5. Condition.  The City has inspected the Nursery Property, is familiar with the present 

condition of the Nursery Property and agrees to accept the Nursery Property in an AS-IS, 

WHERE-IS condition at the commencement of the Term.  THE CITY 

ACKNOWLEDGES THE DISTRICT HAS NOT MADE, OR AUTHORIZED 

ANYONE TO MAKE, ANY WARRANTY OR REPRESENTATION ABOUT THE 

PRESENT OR FUTURE PHYSICAL OR ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITION, 

DEVELOPMENT POTENTIAL, ZONING, OPERATION, INCOME GENERATED 

BY, OR ANY OTHER MATTER OR THING AFFECTING OR RELATING TO THE 

NURSERY PROPERTY OR ANY MATTER OR THING PERTAINING TO THIS 

LEASE AND NO SUCH REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY SHALL BE 

Formatted: Highlight



May 23, 2018 

5 

 

IMPLIED OR ARISE BY OPERATION OF LAW, INCLUDING ANY WARRANTY 

OF CONDITION, HABITABILITY, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A 

PARTICULAR PURPOSE.  THE CITY EXPRESSLY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT (A) 

NO SUCH WARRANTY OR REPRESENTATION HAS BEEN MADE AND THAT 

THE CITY IS NOT RELYING ON ANY WARRANTY OR REPRESENTATION 

WHATSOEVER, AND (B) THE CITY, HAVING HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO 

MAKE AN INDEPENDENT INVESTIGATION AND EXAMINATION OF THE 

NURSERY PROPERTY AND ALL MATTERS RELATED THERETO, IS RELYING 

SOLELY ON ITS OWN INVESTIGATION THEREOF.  THE TERMS OF THIS 

SECTION 5 SHALL SURVIVE THE CLOSING OR TERMINATION OF THIS 

AGREEMENT. 

6. Surrender.  On the termination date of this Lease, the City shall surrender the Nursery 

Property to the District in an as-is condition. 

7. Utilities.  On a timely basis, the City shall pay for all water, gas, heat, light, 

power, telephone and other utilities and services supplied to the Nursery 

Property.  The District shall have no obligation to install or provide any 

utilities or services to the Nursery Property. 

8. Taxes and Assessments.  The Nursery Property currently is exempt from 

general real estate taxes. It is agreed by the Parties that the City shall pay all 

real estate taxes, special taxes or special assessments which may be assessed 

against the Nursery Property. 

9. Access to Nursery Property.  Notwithstanding the City's use and control of the 

Nursery Property, the District and its agents and employees and independent 



May 23, 2018 

6 

 

contractors designated by the District shall have the right to enter upon the 

Nursery Property and all portions thereof at any time during the term of the 

Lease provided notice is provided to the City in advance for the  purpose of 

inspecting the Nursery Property for the enforcement of the Lease; provided, however, 

that in entering upon the Nursery Property the persons shall not unreasonably interfere 

with the City's use of the Nursery Property. 

10. Alterations and Additions.  The City shall be permitted to make new alterations and 

additions to the Nursery Property consistent with the terms of this Lease provided the 

City receives the prior written consent of the District for such new alternations or 

additions, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

11. Insurance.  The City shall obtain and maintain during the Term insurance coverages in 

accordance with Exhibit D.  The District shall be added as an additional insured on all 

such insurance coverage, at no cost to the District. 

12. Default. 

a. District Default.  In the event of a default by District in the performance or 

observance of any of District’s duties or obligations herein contained, and upon 

the failure of District to cure such default within ten (10) days following written 

notice thereof from City (or such longer period of time as may be necessary to 

cure such default by applying consistent, uninterrupted diligence), City, at its 

option, may seek all available legal and equitable remedies. 

b. City Default. In the event of a default by City in the  performance or observance 

of any of City’s duties or obligations herein contained, and upon the failure of 

City to cure such default within ten (10) days following written notice thereof 



May 23, 2018 

7 

 

from District (or such longer period of time as may be necessary to cure such 

default by applying consistent, uninterrupted diligence), District, at its option, 

may seek all available legal and equitable remedies. 

13. Termination.   

a. This Lease shall terminate upon the expiration of the Term and may not be 

terminated early except for a pattern of repeated material breaches of this Lease 

by the City or the District or as otherwise permitted by this Lease.   

b. This Lease may be terminated by the City for any reason and at any time upon 

providing the District no less than 60 days’ written notice of such termination.  

The City shall, within such 60 days, remove any buildings, equipment or other 

personal property from the leased premisesNursery Property at the City’s sole 

cost and expense.   

c. This Lease may be terminated by the District if, in the District’s reasonable 

determination, the Nursery Property has not been, for a period of at least twelve 

(12) consecutive months, used by the City for the specific purposes described in 

this Lease.  The District shall give the City no less than sixty (60) days’ written 

notice of its intent to so terminate during which time the City shall remove any 

buildings, equipment or other personal property remaining on the Leased 

PremisesNursery Property after which the District may remove and dispose of any 

such items at its sole discretion and at the City’s cost and expense.   

d. Should this Lease be terminated pursuant to either subsections (b) or (c) above, 

the City shall, before termination, return the leased premises to as close to its 

original condition as is reasonably possible at the City’s sole cost and expense.   

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 2 + Numbering Style: a, b,
c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.75" +
Tab after:  1" + Indent at:  1"

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight



May 23, 2018 

8 

 

14. Assignment.  The City may not sublet or assign all or any portion of its interest in this 

Lease. For purposes of this paragraph the short-term use of the Nursery Property by 

organizations or other persons under activity permits granted by the City shall not 

constitute a sublet or assignment.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City may execute 

management/operations agreements with third parties for the operation and maintenance 

of the nursery, provided that such management agreements shall not release the City from 

its obligations under this Lease. 

15. Notices.  Any notice or communication required or permitted to be given under this 

Lease must be in writing and be delivered (1) personally, (2) by a reputable overnight 

courier, (3) by certified mail, return receipt requested, and deposited in the U.S. Mail, 

postage prepaid, or (4) by other electronic means. Notices will be deemed delivered on 

the date of actual receipt during normal business hours. By notice complying with the 

requirements of this Section, each party has the right to change the address or the 

addressee, or both, for all future notices and communications to such party, but no notice 

of a change of addressee or address will be effective until actually received. 

Notices and communications to the Park District must be addressed to, and delivered at, 

the following address: 

 Park District of Highland Park 

 Attention: Executive Director 

 636 Ridge Road 

 Highland Park, IL 60035 

  

Notices and communications to the City must be addressed to, and delivered at, the 

following address: 

 City of Highland Park 

 Attention: City Manager 

 1707 St. Johns Avenue 



May 23, 2018 

9 

 

 Highland Park, IL 60035 

    

16. Governing Law.  This Lease is governed by and enforced in accordance with the internal 

laws of, but not the conflicts of laws rules of, the State of Illinois. 

17. Entire Agreement.  This Lease constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with 

respect to the lease of the Nursery Property, and this Lease supersedes every prior 

agreement and negotiation between the parties, whether written or oral, relating to the 

subject matter of this Lease. 

18. Incorporation of Exhibits.  Exhibits A through D attached to this Lease are incorporated 

into and made a part of this Lease by this reference. 

19. Amendments and Modifications.  No amendment or modification to this Lease will be 

effective unless and until it is reduced to writing and approved and executed by all parties 

to this Lease in accordance with all applicable statutory procedures. 

20. No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  No claim as a third-party beneficiary under this Lease by 

any person, firm, or corporation may be made, or be valid, against any of the Parties. 

21. Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be held in default under, or in noncompliance with, 

the provisions of the Lease, nor suffer any enforcement or penalty relating to 

noncompliance or default (including liquidated damages, termination, cancellation or 

revocation), where such noncompliance or alleged defaults occurred or were caused by 

“Force Majeure,” defined as a strike, riot, war, earthquake, flood, tidal wave, unusually 

severe rain or snow storm, hurricane, tornado or other catastrophic act of nature, labor 

disputes, or other event that is reasonably beyond the party’s ability to anticipate or 

control. Non-compliance or default attributable to Force Majeure shall be corrected as 



May 23, 2018 

10 

 

soon as practicable. The party suffering the Force Majeure shall send notice as soon as 

reasonably practicable following the onset and conclusion of the Force Majeure. 

  



May 23, 2018 

11 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the Parties has caused this Agreement to be executed 

by its authorized officers as of the date first above written. 

CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK   PARK DISTRICT OF  

 

 

 

_________________________________  ___________________________________ 

Nancy Rotering, Mayor    Brian Kaplan, President 

 

ATTEST:      ATTEST: 

 

 

 

__________________________________  ___________________________________ 

City Clerk      Secretary 

 

 

 



May 23, 2018 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND DEPICTION OF THE NURSERY PROPERTY 

 

  



May 23, 2018 

 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

 

 CONSERVATION EASEMENTS 

 

1. That certain Grant of Conservation Right and Easement by and between the City of 

Highland Park and the Lake County Forest Preserve District dated June 18, 2002 and 

recorded with the Lake Country Recorder of Deeds as document number 5080789.  

2. That certain Grant of Conservation Right and Easement by and between the City of 

Highland Park and the Lake County Forest Preserve District dated June 19, 2002 and 

recorded with the Lake Country Recorder of Deeds as document number 5080790.  

3. That certain First Amendment to Grant of Conservation Right and Easement by and 

between the City of Highland Park and the Lake County Forest Preserve District 

dated April 25, 2005 and recorded with the Lake Country Recorder of Deeds as 

document numbers 5776326 and 5776327. 



May 23, 2018 

 

 

EXHIBIT “C” 

 

INSURANCE COVERAGES 

A. Minimum Scope of Insurance 

Coverage shall be at least as broad as: 

1. Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage ("occurrence" 

form CG 0001 7/98) or Insurance Services Offices form number GL 0002 

covering  Commercial General Liability.  

2. Insurance Services Office Business Auto coverage form number CA 0001 

1013 covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 "any auto."  

B. Minimum Limits of Insurance 

CITY shall maintain limits no less than: 

1. General Liability/Excess Liability: $3,000,000 combined single limit per 

occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. The 

general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.  

2. Automobile Liability/Excess Liability: $3,000,000 combined single limit per 

accident for bodily injury and property damage including coverages for owned, 

hired or non-owned vehicles as applicable. 

3. The amount of coverage required hereby may be provided by any combination of 

primary and excess or umbrella liability insurance policies. 

C. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions 

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be approved by the District. The 

$25,000 general liability deductible per occurrence must be approved.  

D. Other Insurance Provisions 

The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:  

1. General Liability, Automobile Liability and Liquor Liability 

a. District, its officers, officials, employees, and agents are to be covered as 

additional insureds as respects: liability.  

b. The insurance coverage provided under this Lease shall be primary 

insurance as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees, and 

agents. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by District, its officers, 

officials, employees, or agents shall be excess of City's insurance and shall 

not contribute with it. 



May 23, 2018 

 

 

c. Coverage shall state that the City's insurance shall apply separately to each 

insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect 

to the limits of the insurer's liability. 

E. Acceptability of Insurers 

Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's rating of no less than A: VII and 

licensed to do business in Illinois.  Alternatively, the insurance may be obtained from an 

intergovernmental self-insurance risk agency or pool. 

F. Verification of Coverage 

Prior to commencement of the Term, City shall furnish District with certificates of 

insurance and with original endorsements if applicable effecting coverage required by 

this clause. The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed 

by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. 

 

 
4843-4707-3638, v.  1 

#57302165_v2 



June 3,6, 2018

Prepared By and

After recording, return to:

Adam B. Simon, Esq.
Ancel, Glink, Diamond, Bush,
   DiCianni & Krafthefer, P.C.
175 E. Hawthorn Pkwy., Suite 145
Vernon Hills, Illinois 60061

SHARED USE AGREEMENT
BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK AND

THE PARK DISTRICT OF HIGHLAND PARK

(Lot 4 of Highland Park Country Club)

This Intergovernmental Shared Use Agreement (the "Agreement") is entered into as of

_______________, 2018 the “Effective Date”  between the City of Highland Park, an Illinois

home rule municipality (the "City"), and the Park District of Highland Park, a Unit of Local

Government of the State of Illinois (the "District" or “Park District”). The City and the District

are sometimes hereinafter referred to individually as a "Party" or jointly as the "Parties";

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the City is the fee simple owner of record of lot 4 of the property commonly

known as the Highland Park Country Club, and legally described in Exhibit A attached hereto

(“Property”); and

WHEREAS, the Property is subdivided into seven lots pursuant to the Highland Park

Golf Course Plat of Resubdivision recorded November 10, 2004 as document number 5679534,

in Lake County, Illinois (“Plat”) (for purposes of this Agreement, any references to Lots 1

through 7 in this Agreement shall mean Lots 1 through 7 as identified on the Plat).  A depiction

of the Property and the respective Lots is attached hereto as Exhibit B; and

 1

This space reserved for Recorder's use only.



June 3,6, 2018

WHEREAS, Lot 5 of the Property is comprised of the Recreation Center of Highland

Park (the “RCHP”) which is owned and operated by the Park District; and

WHEREAS, Lot 4 of the Property is comprised of an existing building which has been

used primarily for banquets, locker rooms, and a Pro Shop (collectively referred to as the

“Clubhouse”), a parking lot, points of ingress and egress from Park Avenue West, a monument

sign with changeable copy (the “Monument Sign”), and a public path from Park Avenue West to

Half Day Road; and

WHEREAS, the RCHP and the Clubhouse share certain common areas and common

mechanical systems, including common driveways and entryways, lockers rooms and associated

furnishings, elevators and associated entry areas, mechanical systems, public utilities, laundry

room and related equipment, fire suppression and alarm monitoring systems and equipment; and

WHEREAS, each of the Parties has determined that it is appropriate and in its best

interest that Lot 4 of the Property be shared in the manner described herein for the mutual use

and benefit of their common residents, and in furtherance thereof the Parties desire to enter into

this formal written agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City and District previously entered into that certain Intergovernmental

Lease Agreement dated December 31, 2014 (the “Country Club Lease”) which provided, inter

alia, for the District’s operation of banquets in the Clubhouse; and

WHEREAS, the City and the Park District have the authority to perform and execute this

Agreement under the Illinois Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/1, et seq.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and provisions contained

in this Shared Use Agreement, and for other valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of

which are acknowledged hereby, the Parties agree as follows:

 2



June 3,6, 2018

Term.  Unless sooner terminated, the term of this Agreement shall commence on (the1.

“Effective Date”) and end on December 31, 2116 (the "Term").  Upon the expiration date,

the Term shall renew for successive ten (10) year renewal terms unless either Party gives

notice of its intent not to renew no more than one (1) year and not less than 180 days prior

to the expiration date for the Term or renewal term; provided, that if the District is still

operating the RCHP the City may not terminate this Agreement without the District’s

consent.  The parties understand that during the term of this Agreement circumstances

may change so as to suggest alteration of this Agreement to be in the best interests of the

parties and the community.  Therefore, during the year of every ten year anniversary of

this Agreement, the parties shall meet to discuss whether amending this Agreement in any

way would be in the best interests of the parties and the community.  In the absence of

any agreed upon changes, this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.  In

addition, if the parties shall mutually agree, such meetings may occur more frequently

than every ten years.

Common Areas and Common Facilities.2.

Common Areas. For purposes of this Agreement, the following areas shall bea.

“Common Areas: ”(i) All joint party walls located between the Clubhouse located

on Lot 4 and the RCHP located on Lot 5, (ii) the elevator and corresponding entry

areas, (iii) the trash enclosure, (iv) the parking lot, (v) the points of ingress and

egress from Park Avenue West, (vi) the Laundry Room and, (vii) the Locker

Rooms, subject to reasonable safety and security regulations established by the

District, (viii) the porte cochere located over the common entryway to the

Clubhouse and RCHP, and (ix) the monument sign with changeable copy shall be

 3



June 3,6, 2018

considered “Common Areas.”  Common Areas shall also include the Locker

Rooms, subject to reasonable safety and security regulations established by the

District.  For illustrative purposes, and not in limitation of the foregoing

description, the Common Areas are depicted in the series of diagrams attached

hereto as Group Exhibit E and incorporated by reference.  Except as otherwise

described in this Agreement, the City grants the District unrestricted and

unconditional access and use of the Common Areas to the extent reasonably

consistent with historical custom and practice.

Common Facilities.  The designated mechanical systems, public utilities, and fireb.

suppression and alarm monitoring systems and equipment shall be considered

“Common Facilities.”  For illustrative purposes, and not in limitation of the

foregoing description, the Common Facilities are depicted in the series of

diagrams attached hereto as Group Exhibit E and incorporated by reference. The

City grants the District unrestricted and unconditional access and use of the

Common Facilities to the extent consistent with historical custom and practice.

Pool Hallway.  As depicted more specifically in Group Exhibit E, there is ac.

hallway located in the Clubhouse which leads to the pool located in the RCHP

(the “Pool Hallway”).  The Pool Hallway, including family changing bathrooms,

adjoining offices, storage closet and electrical room, shall not be considered a

Common Area.  The District shall have exclusive possession and control of the

Pool Hallway  located in the Clubhouse and shall be solely responsible for its

maintenance and repair.  The Park District agrees to grant the City unrestricted

and unconditional access and use of the Pool Hallway to the extent consistent with

 4



June 3,6, 2018

historical custom and practice and subject to reasonable safety and security

regulations established by the District; provided that no such regulation shall cut

off access by the City to the Pool Hallway altogether.

Maintenance of Common Areas and Common Facilities on Lot 4.  The Parties agree the3.

maintenance, operation, repair, and replacement of the Common Areas and Common

Facilities shall be performed as described below:

The District has inspected the Common Areas and Common Facilities and isa.

familiar with, and accepts, their present condition at the commencement of the

Term.

The District shall provide general maintenance service for the Common Areas andb.

Common Facilities which shall include keeping them in a good condition, clean,

free of accumulations of dirt, rubbish and unlawful obstructions. Maintenance

shall include routine landscaping around the buildings, the Monument Sign, and

the parking lot islands on Lot 4 and Lot 5 of the Property, maintaining and

updating the message on the Monument Sign, and snow removal for pedestrian

walkways and the parking lot, provided if the parking lot is reconstructed or

relocated by the City, the District shall not be required to perform maintenance or

snow removal in the parking lot without a new written agreement between the

Parties.

The District and City agree that the cost for maintenance of the Common Areasc.

and Common Facilities are attached hereto as Exhibit F and incorporated by

reference.  The District shall prepare an annual budget for the line items described

in Exhibit F and deliver a copy thereof to the City prior to August 15 of each year

 5



June 3,6, 2018

during the Term (the “Budget”).  The City shall remit semi-annual payments equal

to one half of the annual Budget to the District on June 30 and December 31 each

year.  By not later than March 31 each year, the District shall compare the annual

Budget for the preceding year to the actual maintenance expenses, excluding the

General Management Fee (as defined in Exhibit F).  If the actual maintenance

expenses, excluding the General Maintenance Fee, are greater or less than the

annual budget by more than 3%, the District shall report such difference to the

City and a true up amount shall be added or deducted from the remaining

payments for that year.

d. Except for emergency repairs, any separate repair or maintenance expenses for the

Common Areas or Common Facilities exceeding $5,000 and not identified in the

Budget shall require prior approval from both parties. The City and District shall

cooperate on capital improvements and repairs to the Common Areas or Common

Facilities and shall establish a written agreement on project schedule, design,

financing and the allocation of cost. Neither Party’s cooperation or approval shall

be unreasonably withheld.  Emergency repairs shall be identified and performed

by the District and the cost shall be allocated as per Exhibit F.

e. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any capital improvements to the Locker Rooms,

Laundry Room or Pool Hallway for which the District agrees to pay the entire

cost, shall not require City input or approval.f. For calendar year 2018, the

District shall pay for all electric utility service supplied to the Common Facilities.

From and after January 1, 2019, electric utility service shall be included in the

Budget described in Exhibit F.

 6



June 3,6, 2018

Pro ShopDesignated District Office.  The City shall designate an area on the lower level4.

of the Clubhouse commonly known as the Pro Shop willwhich shall be allowed to be

used exclusively by the City.  The Pro Shop shall not be considered a Common Area or

Common Facilityby the District, at no cost to the District, for an office for the District’s

Passive Nature Area.

Monument Sign.  Possession and management of the Monument Sign more specifically5.

depicted on Exhibit E, shall be jointly shared between the City and District during the

Term of this Agreement.  The Monument Sign may be requested to be replaced by either

Party throughout the term of this Agreement.  The Parties shall agree to the timing of the

replacement, sign content and design, and agree to evenly share all costs therefor.  The

Parties shall evenly share the sign panels located on the Monument Sign and each Party

shall have sole discretion and control over the content on its respective sign panels.

Banquets.  The use of the Clubhouse for the operation of banquets and other6.

assembly-type events shall be consistent with the following conditions:

Unless extended pursuant to subsection 6.b below, the Parties agree that thea.

District shall continue to be responsible for general banquet operations until

December 31, 2018.  The District shall also continue to book banquets for 2019

and thereafter until it is agreed by the Parties that booking banquets shall no

longer be a District responsibility. All banquetsbanquet contracts considered for

acceptance by District for after December 31, 2018 must first receive the approval

of the City Manager.  Such approval shall be acted upon within two (2) business

days after such request is submitted in writing to the City Manager pursuant to the

 7



June 3,6, 2018

Notice provision of this Agreement.  If the City Manager does not respond within

said two (2) days, the request shall be deemed as approved.

The District shall have the right, but not the obligation, to extend its responsibilityb.

for general banquet operations after December 31, 2018 by providing written

notice to the City of its intent to do so prior to October 31, 2018.  Such extension

shall include terms, conditions, and revenue sharing provisions that are mutually

acceptable to both the City and the District and set forth in a written document

executed by both the City and the District, which document shall, upon execution,

be deemed to be incorporated into and made a part of this Agreement.

The Parties agree that during any year in which the District is responsible forc.

general banquet operations, the City shall have the right, but not the obligation, to

make cosmetic improvements to the banquet area of the Clubhouse, including but

not limited to chandelier replacements, window treatments, new flooring and

painting at the City’s sole cost and expense. Such improvements, if performed at

all, shall be performed at a time when it shall not unreasonably interfere with the

operation of the banquet facilities and events located therein.

Except for the booking operation described in subsection 6.a from and afterd.

January 1, 2019, the City acknowledges that the District shall have no obligation

for the operation of banquets, unless the District shall have exercised its right to

extend, and a written extension document is executed, pursuant to subsection 6.b.

Minor Capital Projects.  Subject to the limitations otherwise described herein,e.

during any part of the term during which the District is operating the banquet

facilities, the District may exercise discretion to design, construct, and pay for

 8



June 3,6, 2018

capital improvements or capital repairs to the banquet facilities so long as a good

faith estimate of the cost for such improvements or repairs is less than $10,000

(“Minor Capital Projects”).  Upon the District giving notice to the City of its

intent to perform and complete Minor Capital Projects by delivering a copy of the

plans and cost estimate therefor, the City shall be granted thirty (30) days to

request additions to the District’s design for the Minor Capital Project.  If the

City’s additions to the District’s design for Minor Capital Projects result in an

incremental change in the cost for design or construction, all incremental costs

resulting from the City additions shall be borne solely by the City and shall be

paid within thirty (30) days of demand therefor.  Minor Capital Projects for which

the cost exceeds $25,000 due to the City’s additions shall nonetheless remain

Minor Capital Projects.

Major Capital Projects.  During any part of the term during which the District isf.

operating the banquet facilities, for capital improvements or capital repairs to the

banquet facilities for which a good faith estimate of the cost exceeds $10,000

(“Major Capital Projects”), the Parties shall meet and agree on the project

schedule costs and design, but the City may not prevent the District from

performing a Major Capital Project if the District elects to pay for it itself. The

District does not have any obligation to perform Major Capital Projects at its own

expense.

Notwithstanding the provisions of subparagraphs 6.e and 6.f, the District shallg.

perform emergency repairs at all times during which the District is operating the

banquet facilities.  Written notification shall be provided to the City Manager or

 9



June 3,6, 2018

designee providing the scope of the work and cost of repair.  The cost of such

emergency repairs shall be shared equally by the Parties.

Golf Maintenance Shed.  The City grants to the District, and the District accepts from the7.

City, an exclusive license for the use of the golf maintenance shed located in the

northeasterly portion of Lot 4 (collectively, the “Shed Property”), as more specifically

depicted on Exhibit B.  For and in consideration for the license of the Shed Property, the

District shall pay to the City one-half (1/2) of the aggregate sales price for any personal

property described in the golf equipment inventory list described in Exhibit D, which the

District actually sells.  The District shall have the right to terminate the license on thirty

(30) days advance notice.  The City shall have the right to remove or relocate the Shed

Property at any time provided that (a) the City gives the District thirty (30) days advance

notice and (b) the City provides the District with a suitable and comparable location for

the storage of the equipment in the shed Property.

Insurance. Each party shall purchase insurance or self-insurance protection as provided in8.

Exhibit G.

Parking Lot.9.

Except as provided in Section 11 of this Agreement, the Parties acknowledge anda.

agree that there shall be no less than 324 parking spaces (including 12

disabled-access parking spaces) at all times on Lot 4.  Except as expressly

provided herein, all such parking spaces will be available for multiple-shared

uses, including, without limitation, in support of the District’s RCHP on Lot 5 and

the future Passive Natural Area to be constructed by the District on Lots 1 and 2.

In the event that the City relocates its senior citizen services to the Clubhouse, the

10



June 3,6, 2018

City shall have the right to designate certainnot more than 30 of the 324 parking

spaces closest to the Clubhouse building for use by senior citizens using the

Clubhouse during the hours of 9 a.m. to 5 p.m. on Mondays – Fridays.

In the event the City ever intends to relocate the required parking spaces or build ab.

multi-level parking deck because another structure or use will be constructed or

operated on Lot 4, the 324 parking spaces available for use by the District, and its

patrons, guests and invitees of Lots 1, 2 and 5, shall always be located adjacent to

Lot 5. No portion of any multi-level parking deck or other structure will be

located on the west half of Lot 4 (as shown on Exhibit X) shall have a height

higher than one story above the established grade.  In the event the parking is

relocated at any time and for any reason, such relocation shall occur at no cost or

expense to the District.  The City shall seek out the comments and

recommendations of the Park District with respect to the relocation of parking

before any plans are publicly presented. For the purpose of this subsection, the

west half of Lot 4 shall be depicted on Exhibit B.

The City and District will work cooperatively on any proposals submitted by eachc.

Party if the parking or driveway areas located west of the current (2018) westerly

most access point from Park Avenue West shown on Exhibit Y are proposed to be

removed, redesigned or relocated.  The cooperation anticipated by this provision

shall not be unreasonably withheld by either Party.  Any proposed change to

existing access points shall not impede the District’s appropriate access to Lot 5

and the driveway dropoff area for the RCHP.

11



June 3,6, 2018

Any additional parking spaces required as result of programming, activities,d.

businesses or other functions operated or approved by the City shall be solely the

responsibility of the City to design and improve and shall not reduce any of the

parking spaces which currently exist as set forth herein.

The District and its invitees, guests and customers shall not be charged any fee ore.

expense for parking in the parking spaces required by this Agreement.

Except for any parking deck which the City may construct, the City and thef.

District shall share in all capital expenses relating to the reconstruction,

resurfacing and/or resealing of the parking areas and lighting in parking lots.  The

City shall consult with and seek out the comments and recommendations of the

Park District with respect to the design and specifications of the parking lot lights.

All costs referenced in this subsection (f) shall be shared equally between the

Parties.

Cross-Access to the Shed Property, Lot 1 and Lot 5.10.

Except as provided in Section 11 of this Agreement, the City shall provide, at alla.

times, reasonable and direct pedestrian and vehicular access across Lot 4, from

and between the Park Avenue West right-of-way, the Shed Property, Lot 1 and

Lot 5.  Without limiting the generality of the preceding sentence, the City shall

provide direct access from Lot 4 to Lot 1 at the points identified on Exhibit B as

“Entrance to Passive Natural Area.”

Subject to the obligation described in subsection (a), the location of access pointb.

or points to Lot 4 from Park Avenue West will be determined, and can be

changed, by the City in its reasonable discretion.  In the event the City ever

12



June 3,6, 2018

intends to relocate the access point or points, the City shall seek out the comments

and recommendations of the Park District.

The location of access point or points between Lot 4 and Lot 5 shall not bec.

changed without the mutual, written agreement of the Parties, which agreement

shall not be unreasonably withheld.

In the event that access points to Lot 4 from Park Avenue West are relocated atd.

any time and for any reason, the costs for such relocation shall be paid for by the

Party which initiated such relocation. In the event such access points require the

installation of additional traffic controls of any kind, such controls shall be

constructed,  and installed and maintained at no cost or expense to the District;

however, maintenance of such traffic controls would be shared by the Parties.

The District and its invitees, guests and customers shall not be charged any fee ore.

expense for exercising the cross-access rights across Lot 4.

The recording of this Agreement shall represent a parking and cross-accessf.

easement memorializing the City’s obligation to provide parking and cross-access

on Lot 4 for the use and benefit of the Shed Property and Lots 1, 2 and 5,

consistent with the terms of this Agreement.  The covenants, including the

termination and applicability provisions, herein described shall run with the land

and be binding on the City’s successors and assigns.

Limitation of the Applicability of the Requirements in Sections 9 and 10.  Sections 9 and11.

10 of this Agreement shall be applicable only for so long as the District uses at least a

portion of Lot 5 for recreational purposes and portions of Lots 1 and 2 as a Natural

Preservation Area.

13



June 3,6, 2018

Limitation on Use of Lot 4.  The City shall not operate or permit to be operated any use12.

on Lot 4 which dedicates more than 1000 square feet to any use which competes with the

recreational uses operated by the District on Lot 5.

Taxes and Assessments.  It is agreed by the Parties that the City and District shall pay13.

pro-rata all real estate taxes, special taxes or special assessments which may be assessed

against Lot 4 based on the amount of area used by each Party.

Title.  The City warrants that it has title to Lot 4 in fee simple, free and clear of any liens,14.

claims or encumbrances of third parties, except as listed on Exhibit C.

Assignment.  The District may not sublet or assign all or any portion of its interest in this15.

Agreement.  For purposes of this paragraph the short-term use of the RCHP or the

Clubhouse by organizations or other persons for banquets or other

recreational/assembly-type uses shall not constitute a sublet or assignment.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the District may execute management agreements with

third parties for the operation of banquets, provided that such management agreements

shall not release the District from its obligations under this Lease.

Default/Remedy16.

City Default. In the event of a default by the City in the performance ora.

observance of any of the City’s duties or obligations herein contained, and upon

the failure of City to cure such default within ten (10) days following written

notice thereof from the District (or such longer period of time as may be necessary

to cure such default by applying consistent, uninterrupted diligence), the District

may pursue all legal and equitable remedies.

14



June 3,6, 2018

District Default. In the event of a default by the District in the performance orb.

observance of any of the District’s duties or obligations herein contained, and

upon the failure of the District to cure such default within ten (10) days following

written notice thereof from the City (or such longer period of time as may be

necessary to cure such default by applying consistent, uninterrupted diligence), the

City may pursue all legal and equitable remedies.

Notices.  Any notice or communication required or permitted to be given under this17.

Agreement must be in writing and be delivered (1) personally, (2) by a reputable

overnight courier, (3) by certified mail, return receipt requested, and deposited in the U.S.

Mail, postage prepaid, or (4) by other electronic means. Notices will be deemed delivered

on the date of actual receipt during normal business hours. By notice complying with the

requirements of this Section, each party has the right to change the address or the

addressee, or both, for all future notices and communications to such party, but no notice

of a change of addressee or address will be effective until actually received.

Notices and communications to the District must be addressed to, and delivered at, the

following address:

Park District of Highland Park
Attention: Executive Director
636 Ridge Road
Highland Park, IL 60035

Notices and communications to the City must be addressed to, and delivered at, the

following address:

15



June 3,6, 2018

City of Highland Park
Attention: City Manager
1707 St. Johns Avenue
Highland Park, IL 60035

18. Incorporation of Exhibits.  Exhibits A through F attached to this Agreement are

incorporated into and made a part of this Agreement by this reference.

19. Amendments and Modifications.  No amendment or modification to this Agreement will

be effective unless and until it is reduced to writing and approved and executed by all

parties to this Agreement in accordance with all applicable statutory procedures.

20. Governing Law.  This Agreement is governed by and enforced in accordance with the

internal laws of, but not the conflicts of the laws rules of, the State of Illinois.

21. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties

with respect to the subject matter hereof, and this Agreement supersedes every prior

agreement and negotiation between the parties, whether written or oral, relating to the

subject matter of this Agreement.

22. Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be held in default under, or in noncompliance with,

the provisions of the Agreement, nor suffer any enforcement or penalty relating to

noncompliance or default (including liquidated damages, termination, cancellation or

revocation), where such noncompliance or alleged defaults occurred or were caused by

“Force Majeure,” defined as a strike, riot, war, earthquake, flood, tidal wave, unusually

severe rain or snow storm, hurricane, tornado or other catastrophic act of nature, labor

disputes, or other event that is reasonably beyond the party’s ability to anticipate or

control.  Non-compliance or default attributable to Force Majeure shall be corrected as

soon as practicable.  The party suffering the Force Majeure shall send notice as soon as

reasonably practicable following the onset and conclusion of the Force Majeure.

16



June 3,6, 2018

23. Casualty.

a. The City shall obtain and maintain throughout the term of this Agreement

property and casualty insurance coverage equal to the full replacement value of

the Clubhouse, including but not limited to the Common Areas and Common

Facilities.  The City shall cause the District to be named as a co-loss payee on

such property and casualty insurance coverage.  In the event of a casualty event

which results in the loss of use of any Common Areas or Common Facilities or

any portion of the Clubhouse, the City agrees to use the proceeds of the property

and casualty insurance coverage to promptly repair or replace all affected

Common Areas or Common Facilities and the affected portion of the Clubhouse

unless otherwise agreed by both Parties.  The District shall have the right, but not

the obligation, to use any insurance proceeds to construct permanent or temporary

improvements on, over and across Lot 4 to replace the Common Areas or

Common Facilities and their functionality affected by the casualty event.

b. The District shall also purchase and keep in place general liability and property

insurance coverages adequate to protect its interests in this Agreement, such

coverages shall be in amounts acceptable to the City.

24. Condemnation.  The City covenants not to exercise the power of eminent domain for the

purpose of removing the City’s warranties and obligations to the District related to Lot 4.

25. Certifications.  The Parties certify hereby that they are not barred from entering into this

Lease Agreement as result of violation of either Section 33E-3 or Section 33E-4 of the

Illinois Criminal Code and that each Party has a written sexual harassment policy in place

in full compliance with 775 ILCS 5/2-105(A)(4) and 5 ILCS 430/70-5. The Parties each

17



June 3,6, 2018

represent and warrant that it is not acting, directly or indirectly, for or on behalf of any

person, group, entity, or nation named by the United States Treasury Department as a

Specially Designated National and Blocked Person, or for or on behalf of any person,

group, entity, or nation designated in Presidential Executive Order 13224 as a person who

commits, threatens to commit, or supports terrorism; and that it is not engaged in this

transaction directly or indirectly on behalf of, or facilitating this transaction directly or

indirectly on behalf of, any such person, group, entity, or nation.

26. Master Agreement. To the extent there are any inconsistencies between the Master

Agreement and this document, this document shall control.

18



June 3,6, 2018

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the
Execution Date.

PARK DISTRICT OF HIGHAND PARK

Signature: _______________________________________________________________
Printed Name: Brian Kaplan
Title: President

Attest:

Signature:_______________________________________________________________
Printed Name: ___________________________________________________________
Title: Secretary

CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK

Signature: ___________________________________________________________
Printed Name: Nancy R. Rotering
Title: Mayor

Attest:

Signature: ___________________________________________________________
Printed Name: Ghida S. Neukirch
Title: City Manager/City Clerk

19



June 3,6, 2018

EXHIBIT “A”--- Legal Description of the Property

20



June 3,6, 2018

EXHIBIT “B”---Graphic depiction of Property and Lots

21



June 3,6, 2018

EXHIBIT “C” --- Permitted Title Exceptions

22



June 3,6, 2018

EXHIBIT “D” --- Golf Equipment Inventory List

23



June 3,6, 2018

GROUP EXHIBIT “E” --- Common Areas and Common Facilities Diagrams

24



June 3,6, 2018

EXHIBIT F – COSTS

The City and Park District shall select an independent professional accounting, auditing or other
appropriate entity to perform a study as to the relative expected use of all Common Areas and
Common Facilities described in this Agreement and recommend a formula or method for
distributing the costs of all maintenance and capital improvements of said Common Areas and
Common Facilities.  The cost of such a study shall be borne equally by the parties and such study
shall be binding on the parties.  A new study may be requested by either party but no more often
than every 10 year anniversary of the Effective Date.

25



June 3,6, 2018

EXHIBIT “G”---Insurance Requirements

A. Minimum Scope of Insurance

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage ("occurrence"1.
form CG 0001 7/98) or Insurance Services Offices form number GL 0002
covering  Commercial General Liability.

Insurance Services Office Business Auto coverage form number CA 00012.
1013 covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 "any auto."

B. Minimum Limits of Insurance

General Liability/Excess Liability: $3,000,000 combined single limit per1.
occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. The
general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

Automobile Liability/Excess Liability: $3,000,000 combined single limit per2.
accident for bodily injury and property damage including coverages for owned,
hired or non-owned vehicles as applicable.

Liquor liability limits of $3,000,000 per occurrence combined single limit.3.

The amount of coverage required hereby may be provided by any combination of4.
primary and excess or umbrella liability insurance policies.

C. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be approved by the Parties.

D. Other Insurance Provisions

The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

General Liability, Automobile Liability and Liquor Liability1.

City/District, (as applicable) its officers, officials, employees, and agentsa.
are to be covered as additional insureds as respects: liability.

The insurance coverage provided under this Lease shall be primaryb.
insurance as respects the City/District, (as applicable) its officers, officials,
employees, and agents. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by
City/District, (as applicable) its officers, officials, employees, or agents
shall be excess of CITY’s/DISTRICT’s insurance and shall not contribute
with it.

26



June 3,6, 2018

Coverage shall state that the CITY’s/DISTRICT’s insurance shall applyc.
separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought,
except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

Acceptability of InsurersE.

Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best’s rating of no less than A: VII and
licensed to do business in Illinois.  Alternatively, the insurance may be obtained from an
intergovernmental self-insurance risk agency or pool.

Verification of CoverageF.

Prior to commencement of the Term, CITY/DISTRICT shall furnish City/District with
certificates of insurance and with original endorsements if applicable effecting coverage
required by this clause. The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy are to
be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.

#58100099_v12

27



Document comparison by Workshare Compare on Wednesday, June 06, 2018
9:27:04 PM

Input:

Document 1 ID interwovenSite://HKDMS/Active/58100099/1

Description
#58100099v1<Active> - HPCC Lot 4 Shared Use
Agreement  SME 06-03-18

Document 2 ID interwovenSite://HKDMS/Active/58100099/2

Description
#58100099v2<Active> - HPCC Lot 4 Shared Use
Agreement  SME 06-03-18

Rendering set Standard

Legend:

Insertion 

Deletion 

Moved from 

Moved to 

Style change

Format change

Moved deletion 

Inserted cell

Deleted cell

Moved cell

Split/Merged cell

Padding cell

Statistics:

Count

Insertions 23

Deletions 16

Moved from 1

Moved to 1

Style change 0

Format changed 0

Total changes 41



June 3,6, 2008

LEASE AGREEMENT
BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK AND

THE PARK DISTRICT OF HIGHLAND PARK

(Lot 3 of Highland Park Country Club)
This Intergovernmental Lease Agreement (the "Lease") is entered into as of

____________, 2018 the “Effective Date” between the City of Highland Park, an Illinois

home rule municipality (the "City"), and the Park District of Highland Park, a Unit of Local

Government of the State of Illinois (the "District" or “Park District”). The City and the

District are sometimes hereinafter referred to individually as a "Party" or jointly as the

"Parties";

WITNESSETH: 
WHEREAS, the City is the fee simple owner of record of Lot 3 of the property commonly

known as the Highland Park Country Club, and legally described in Exhibit A attached hereto

(“Property”); and

WHEREAS, the Property is subdivided into seven lots pursuant to the Highland Park

Golf Course Plat of Resubdivision recorded November 10, 2004 as document number 5679534,

in Lake County, Illinois (“Plat”) (for purposes of this Agreement, any references to Lots 1

through 7 in this Agreement shall mean Lots 1 through 7 as identified on the Plat).  A depiction

of the Property and the respective Lots is attached hereto as Exhibit B; and

WHEREAS, upon Lot 3 of the Property (the "Enterprise Property") is located a

monument sign, dome, golf driving range, miniature golf facility, learning center, driveways, and

parking areas, all of which provide for the recreational needs of the City; and

WHEREAS, the dome, golf learning center and driving range and miniature golf facilities

are referred to collectively as the "Enterprises"); and

 1



June 3,6, 2008

WHEREAS, the operation and maintenance of the Enterprise Property is currently

governed by that certain Intergovernmental Lease & Management of Real Estate (Enterprise

Properties) Agreement dated October 31, 1996 between the City and the District (“Existing

Management Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the operation and maintenance of the dome is currently governed by that

certain First Amended and Restated Concession and Site Agreement, dated August 26, 2009, by

and between the City, the District and HP Indoor Facility, LLC (“Dome Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, each of the Parties has determined that it is appropriate and in its best

interest that the District be given the rights and assume the obligations for the planning,

establishing, managing, operating and maintaining of the Enterprise Property, including the

Enterprises, for public park and recreational purposes, and in furtherance thereof the Parties

desire to enter into a formal written agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Parties have the authority to complete this transfer and lease under the

Illinois Local Government Property Transfer Act, 50 ILCS 605/0.01, et seq. (Property Transfer

Act) and the Illinois Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/1, et seq; and

WHEREAS, prior to the execution hereof each of the Parties has taken all action

necessary under the Local Governmental Property Transfer Act to authorize its entry into this

Lease.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and provisions contained

in this Lease, and for other valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are

acknowledged hereby, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Enterprise Property.

 2



June 3,6, 2008

The City leases to the District and the District leases from the City for the terma.

stated in paragraph 2 of this Lease, the Enterprise Property, together with all

improvements and other assets real and personal located thereon.

Except as otherwise indicated in this Lease, for purposes of this Lease the wordb.

"Enterprise Property" shall mean the Enterprise Property together with all

improvements and other assets real and personal located thereon.

The Lease shall be subject to the Dome Agreement.  The City hereby assigns toc.

the District all of its rights described in the Dome Agreement and shall take all

actions necessary under the Dome Agreement to cause the Grantee to make

payments directly to the District.

2. Term.  Unless sooner terminated in accordance with paragraph 18 of this Lease, the term

of this Lease shall be for a term commencing on the date of Closing for the District’s

purchase of Lots 1, 2, 6 and 7 of the PropertyJanuary 1, 2019 (the “Effective Date”) and

ending December 31, 21162118 (the "Term").

3. Annual Rent.  The District shall pay the City as rent for the Enterprise Property, for each

year during the Term, a sum of money equal to the product of the “Revenue Share” (as

hereinafter defined) multiplied by the "Net Revenue" (as hereinafter defined). The annual

rent shall be payable within thirty (30) days after District has received from its

independent auditor its certified report of the District's financial statements including a

separate statement of the Net Revenue of the Enterprises for the District's prior fiscal

year. Provided, however, that in recognition and consideration of the benefit derived

by the City and the public from the District's planning, establishing, managing, operating

 3



June 3,6, 2008

and maintaining the Enterprise Property and the Enterprises, in the event there is no Net

Revenue in a given year, the inability of the District to derive any Net Revenue for that

year, and inability of the City to receive rent for that year, shall not constitute a default

under or breach by District of its obligation to pay rent under this Agreement.  There shall

be no minimum rent required for any part of the term of this Lease.

4. Net Revenue.  For purposes of this Lease the term "Net Revenue" is defined as the

positive difference between Revenues and Expenses, as described below:

“Revenues” shall include all revenue derived by the District from the usea.

of the Enterprises, including membership fees, season, daily and other

admission passes or fees; sales of merchandise, food and beverages; rental of

facilities, Dome rental and District programs.  All money received directly by

non-District independent contractors, vendors or other third parties performing

District permitted activities directly to others shall not be considered Revenue.

Any fees, rents, commission or other monies paid by such persons/entities to the

District for use of District property shall be considered Revenue.

“Expenses” shall include the actual reasonable and necessary costs andb.

expenses incurred by the District in operating, conducting, managing and

maintaining the Enterprise Property, including but not limited to all costs

and expenses paid by District in connection with actions required or

permitted to be taken by District under this Lease, the cost of staff salaries,

benefits and expense reimbursement, program expenses, the cost of

alterations and maintenance, the cost of goods, equipment and materials,

 4



June 3,6, 2008

the cost of independent contractor, management and professional services

contracts, reasonable general administrative costs, capital depreciation,

deductions for refunds, returns and uncollectible accounts receivable, and

the cost of insurance, risk management services, utilities, taxes and other

assessments and miscellaneous charges (collectively, the "Expenses" and

individually, an "Expense").  For each of the first two years of the Term, the

Parties agree that the District shall be paid an annual management fee equal

to an amount that is equal to 7% of the annual Expenses.  Thereafter,

____________.

All major or minor Capital Expenses which exceed annual Net Revenues inc.

any year,  may be carried over to future years and operate as a charge

against future positive annual Net Revenues as set out in Section 5 below.

For the purpose of this Lease, “Capital Expenses” shall be as defined in

Section 8.f below)

Revenue Share.5.

a. For any year during the term of this lease when the District has outstanding

obligations related to Minor or Major Capital Projects (as defined in Section 88.e

and 8.f below) made at any time to the Enterprise Property or the Enterprises, the

Revenue Share shall be equal to 25% of Net Revenues.  For all other periods

during the term of the lease the Revenue Share shall be equal to 50% of Net

Revenues.  For confirmation of the Revenue Share for each year of the term, the

District shall deliver to the City a certified report prepared by its independent

 5



June 3,6, 2008

auditor of the District's financial statements including a separate statement of the

Net Revenue of the Enterprises for the District's prior fiscal year.  Such report

shall describe whether the District has outstanding obligations related to

Minor or Major Capital Projects.  For any year in which the District has

outstanding major and/or minor Capital Expenses and there is a positive

Annual Net Revenue, not including a consideration for major and/or minor

Capital Expenses, the City shall receive 25% of said Net Revenue, the District

25% of said Net Revenue, and 50% of the said Net Revenue shall be allocated

to pay down the outstanding major and/or minor Capital Expenses until paid

in full.

b. If at any time during the Term, annual Expenses have exceeded annual

Revenues for five (5) consecutive years, the City shall be entitled to receive an

alternate method of compensation for the lease of the Enterprise Property, the

amount and method of which shall be proposed by the City, and approved by

the District, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

Accounting.  For the purpose of calculating Net Revenue, the Parties agree to rely on the6.

accounting methods adopted from time to time by the District, provided they are not

inconsistent with generally accepted accounting principles.

Use.  The District shall use the Enterprise Property only for purposes connected with the7.

provision of park and recreational services and programs determined appropriate by the

District and which are not inconsistent with any applicable land use covenants and

zoning regulations.  Except as limited by the foregoing sentence, the District shall

 6



June 3,6, 2008

exercise sole discretion to determine what activities are operated on the Enterprise

Property and may add, remove, replace or substitute programs and activities, including

the Enterprises.

Condition; Maintenance; Improvements.8.

The District has inspected the Enterprise Property, is familiar with the presenta.

condition of the Enterprise Property and agrees to accept the Enterprise Property

in that condition at the commencement of the Term.

The District shall provide general property maintenance service for theb.

Enterprise Property which shall include keeping the Enterprise Property in a

clean condition, free of accumulations of dirt, rubbish and unlawful obstructions

as well as provide landscaping and exterior maintenance of all of the grounds

including those immediately adjacent to all of the buildings and the parking lots

located on the Enterprise Property.  All costs incurred by the District pursuant to

this subparagraph b shall be considered to be “Expenses.”

Except for the parking areas, theThe District shall also keep in goodc.

condition the interiors and exteriors of all of the buildings on the

Enterprise Property and all entranceways and sidewalks leading thereto.

To that end, the District shall provide customary maintenance to all of the

Enterprise Property, except the parking areas, as reasonably required under the

circumstances.

The cost for the maintenance,comprehensive repair and replacement of thed.

parking areas, including but not limited to lights, shall be evenly split between the

 7



June 3,6, 2008

Parties.  The District shall invoice the City for the City’s share of said cost within

30 days of any project completion, and the City shall pay its share promptly upon

receipt of such invoice.  No costs associated with the comprehensive replacement

of the parking area as described in this subparagraph cd shall be considered to be

“Expenses.”

d. Minor Capital Projects.  Subject to the limitations otherwise describede.

herein, District may exercise discretion to design and construct capital

improvements or capital repairs to the Enterprise Property and

Enterprises so long as a good faith estimate of the cost for such

improvements or repairs is less than $25,000, adjusted annually by the

percentage change in the Consumer Price Index (“Minor Capital

Projects”).  Upon the District giving notice to the City of its intent to

perform and complete Minor Capital Projects by delivering a copy of the

design plans and cost estimate therefor, the City shall be granted thirty

(30) days to request additions to the District’s design for capital

improvements or capital repairs, but the City may not prevent the District

from performing Minor Capital Projects.  If the City’s additions to the

District’s design for Minor Capital Projects result in an incremental

change in the cost for design or construction, all incremental costs

resulting from the City additions shall be borne solely by the City and

shall be paid within thirty (30) days of demand therefor.  Minor Capital

 8



June 3,6, 2008

Projects for which the cost exceeds $25,000 due to the City’s additions

shall nonetheless remain Minor Capital Projects.

e. Major Capital Projects.  For capital improvements or capital repairs forf.

which a good faith estimate of the cost exceeds $25,000, adjusted

annually by the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index (“Major

Capital Projects”), the cost shall be shared evenly by the Parties unless

otherwise agreed to in writing. All expenses related to Capital Projects

shall be “Capital Expenses.” Before commencing a Major Capital

Project, the Parties shall meet and agree on the project schedule and

design, but the City may not prevent the District from performing a

Major Capital Project if the District elects to pay for it itself. The

District does not have any obligation to perform Major Capital Projects

at its own expense.  The Parties agree to replace the monument

identification sign located on the frontage of U.S. Route 41 within the

first 24 months of the term and to evenly share all costs therefor, which

costs shall not be considered to be “Expenses”.

f. Notwithstanding the provisions of subparagraphs (d), (e) and (ef)g.

herein above, the District shall perform emergency repairs, the cost for

which shall be considered an Expense.

9. Surrender.  On the termination date of this Lease, the District shall surrender the

Enterprise Property to the City in the then prevailing condition and additions or

 9



June 3,6, 2008

alterations made by the District, notwithstanding any investment into such alternations

paid for by the City.

Utilities.  On a timely basis, the District shall pay for all water, gas, heat, light, power,10.

telephone and other utilities and services supplied to the Enterprise Property.  The cost

for utilities shall be considered an Expense.

Taxes and Assessments.  The Enterprise Property currently is exempt from general11.

real estate taxes. It is agreed by the Parties that the District shall pay all real estate

taxes, special taxes or special assessments, but only such taxes or special

assessments which shall be imposed by State law on a local public entity, which may

be assessed against the Enterprise Property as an Expense.

Access to Enterprise Property.  Notwithstanding the District's exclusive use and12.

control of the Enterprise Property, the City and its agents and employees and

independent contractors designated by the City shall have the right to enter upon the

Enterprise Property and all portions thereof at any time during the term of the Lease for

the purpose of inspecting the Enterprise Property for the enforcement of the Lease;

provided, however, that in entering upon the Enterprise Property the persons shall not

unreasonably interfere with the District's use of the Enterprise Property.

Alterations and Improvements.  The District shall be permitted to make new alterations13.

and additions to the Enterprise Property consistent with the terms of this Lease provided

the District receives the prior written consent of the City for such new alterations or

additions, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld unless such new alteration

or addition would have the effect materially reducing the Net Revenue. Any addition or

10



June 3,6, 2008

improvement made to the Enterprise Property by the District and not removed shall

upon termination of the Lease belong to and become the property of the City without

cost to the City.

Title.  The City warrants that it has title to the Enterprise Property in fee simple, free14.

and clear of any liens, claims or encumbrances of third parties, except as listed on

Exhibit C.

Continued Access.  During the term of this Lease the City will provide to the District15.

continued access to the Lot 3 from U.S. Route 41.  Any relocation or reconstruction of

the existing access to Lot 3 from U.S. Route 41, and the construction, maintenance and

operation of any traffic controls related thereto, shall be performed at no expense to the

District.

Insurance.  The District shall obtain and maintain during the Term insurance coverages16.

in accordance with Exhibit D.  Cost for insurance shall be considered an Expense.

Default.17.

A. City Default.  In the event of a default by City in the performance or observance

of any of City’s duties or obligations herein contained, and upon the failure of City to

cure such default within ten (10) days following written notice thereof from the District

(or such longer period of time as may be necessary to cure such default by applying

consistent, uninterrupted diligence), the District, at its option, may seek all available legal

and equitable remedies.

B. District Default.  In the event of a default by the District in the performance or

observance of any of the District’s duties or obligations herein contained, and upon the

11



June 3,6, 2008

failure of the District to cure such default within ten (10) days following written notice

thereof from the City (or such longer period of time as may be necessary to cure such

default by applying consistent, uninterrupted diligence), the City, at its option and as its

sole remedy, may seek specific performance of this Agreement.

Termination.18.

This Lease shall terminate upon the expiration of the Term and may not bea.

terminated early except for a pattern of repeated material breaches of this Lease

by the District or as otherwise permitted by this Agreement.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, withereither party shall have the right tob.

terminate this Lease prior to the expiration of the Term once every twenty-five

years, on each 25th anniversary of the Effective Date, provided that written

notice of such termination is given to the other party no less than 180 days prior

to the 25th year anniversary date. FurtherIn the event that the City terminates the

Lease at any 25th year anniversary date as set forth in this subparagraph, the City

shall make the District whole for any outstanding Capital Expenses (as presented

by the District and verified by the City) within 30 days after the stated

termination date.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City shall have the right to terminate thisc.

Lease prior to the expiration of the Term in the event that annual Expenses

exceed annual Revenues for five consecutive years, provided that written notice

of such termination is given by the City to the Districtif, in the City’s reasonable

judgment, the District has, for a period of not less than twenty four (24)

12



June 3,6, 2008

consecutive months, abandoned all recreational and park uses of the Enterprise

Property.  The City shall give the District no less than 120 days’ notice to so

terminate the Lease, and the District may stop the proposed termination by

curing the alleged abandonment within 180 days after the expiration of such fifth

consecutive yearsaid 120 days.

  Hazardous Substances.19.

a. It is understood the Enterprise Property is located over a “capped” City landfill.

Notwithstanding any language to the contrary elsewhere contained in this

Agreement, the District shall not be liable to the City or any person, firm or

corporation acting on behalf of the City or its contractors for any damage, loss,

expense, response cost or liability, including consultant fees and attorneys’ fees,

resulting from the presence of hazardous substances on, under or around the

Enterprise Property or resulting from hazardous substances being generated,

stored, disposed of or transported to, on, under or around the Enterprise Property

by the City, its contractors, predecessors in title, or any other third party acting at

the request or on behalf of the City unless caused by the acts of the District.

b. For purposes of this Agreement, “Hazardous Substances” shall mean (i) any

substance which contains gasoline, diesel fuel or other petroleum hydrocarbons,

(ii) any substance which is flammable, radioactive, corrosive or carcinogenic, (iii)

any substance the presence of which the Enterprise Property causes or threatens

to cause a nuisance or health hazard affecting human health, the environment, the

Enterprise Property or property adjacent thereto, or (iv) any substance the

13



June 3,6, 2008

presence of which on the Enterprise Property requires investigation or

remediation under any hazardous substance law, as the same may hereafter be

amended. “Hazardous Substance Law” means the Comprehensive

Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. 9601 et

seq.; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. 9601 et seq.; the

Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. 1801 et seq.; the Clean Water

Act, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.; the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. 7401 et seq.; the

Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act, 7 U.S.C. 136 et seq.; the

Toxic Substance Control Act, 15 U.S.C. 2601 et seq.; the Emergency Planning

and Community Right to Know Act (SARA Title III) 42 U.S.C. 11001 et seq.;

and any applicable state law or regulation.

c. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the District shall indemnify and hold

harmless the City and its officers, officials, employees, volunteers and agents

from and against all claims, damages losses and expenses, including, but not

limited to, legal fees (attorney’s and paralegal’s fees, expert fees and court costs),

arising out of or resulting from the actions of the District with respect to the

Enterprise Property provided that any such claim, damage, loss or expense is

attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or injury to or destruction

of property, other than the Enterprise Property itself, including the loss of use

resulting therefrom, to the extent it is caused in whole or in part by any wrongful

or negligent act or omission of the District or anyone for whose acts the District

may be liable.  Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge or

14



June 3,6, 2008

otherwise reduce any other right to indemnity which the City would otherwise

have.

d. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the City shall indemnify and hold harmless

the District and its officers, officials, employees, volunteers and agents from and

against all claims, damages losses and expenses, including, but not limited to,

legal fees (attorney’s and paralegal’s fees, expert fees and court costs), arising out

of or resulting from the actions of the City with respect to the Enterprise Property

provided that any such claim, damage, loss or expense is attributable to bodily

injury, sickness, disease or death, or injury to or destruction of property, other

than the Enterprise Property itself, including the loss of use resulting therefrom,

to the extent it is caused in whole or in part by any wrongful or negligent act or

omission of the City or anyone for whose acts the City may be liable.  Such

obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge or otherwise reduce any other

right to indemnity which the District would otherwise have.  

Assignment.  The District may not sublet or assign all or any portion of its interest in20.

this Lease. For purposes of this paragraph the short-term use of the Enterprise Property

by organizations or other persons under activity permits granted by the District shall not

constitute a sublet or assignment.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the District may

execute management agreements with third parties for the operation and maintenance of

the Enterprises, provided that such management agreements shall not release the District

from its obligations under this Lease.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that the Dome

15



June 3,6, 2008

Agreement, and any successor similar agreement, shall not represent a violation of this

paragraph.

Notices. Any notice or communication required or permitted to be given under this21.

Lease must be in writing and be delivered (1) personally, (2) by a reputable overnight

courier, (3) by certified mail, return receipt requested, and deposited in the U.S. Mail,

postage prepaid, or (4) by other electronic means. Notices will be deemed delivered on

the date of actual receipt during normal business hours. By notice complying with the

requirements of this Section, each party has the right to change the address or the

addressee, or both, for all future notices and communications to such party, but no

notice of a change of addressee or address will be effective until actually received.

Notices and communications to the Park District must be addressed to, and delivered at,

the following address:

Park District of Highland Park
Attention: Executive Director
636 Ridge Road
Highland Park, IL 60035

Notices and communications to the City must be addressed to, and delivered at, the

following address:

City of Highland Park
Attention: City Manager
1707 St. Johns Avenue
Highland Park, IL 60035

22. Certifications.  The Parties certify hereby that they are not barred from entering

into this Lease Agreement as result of violation of either Section 33E-3 or Section 33E-4 of

the Illinois Criminal Code and that each Party has a written sexual harassment policy in

16



June 3,6, 2008

place in full compliance with 775 ILCS 5/2-105(A)(4) and 5 ILCS 430/70-5. The Parties

each represent and warrant that it is not acting, directly or indirectly, for or on behalf of any

person, group, entity, or nation named by the United States Treasury Department as a

Specially Designated National and Blocked Person, or for or on behalf of any person, group,

entity, or nation designated in Presidential Executive Order 13224 as a person who commits,

threatens to commit, or supports terrorism; and that it is not engaged in this transaction

directly or indirectly on behalf of, or facilitating this transaction directly or indirectly on

behalf of, any such person, group, entity, or nation.

23. Casualty/Condemnation.  Subject to the protections provided by the District’s insurance

purchased pursuant to Paragraph 14 of this Lease, City and District shall equally bear all risk

of loss.  In the event of any casualty or the commencement or threat of condemnation

proceedings affecting the Enterprise Property, the City shall give the Park District notice of

such event within five (5) days.  Within five (5) days from receipt of such notice of such

event, the Park District may elect to cancel this agreement and terminate the Lease of the

Enterprise Property.

24.  Governing Law.  This Agreement is governed by and enforced in accordance with the

internal laws of, but not the conflicts of laws rules of, the State of Illinois.

25.  Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties

with respect to the lease of the Enterprise Property and the Enterprises, and this Agreement

supersedes every prior agreement and negotiation between the parties, whether written or

oral, relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.

17



June 3,6, 2008

26. Incorporation of Exhibits.  Exhibits A through D attached to this Agreement are

incorporated into and made a part of this Agreement by this reference.

27. Amendments and Modifications.  No amendment or modification to this Agreement will

be effective unless and until it is reduced to writing and approved and executed by all parties

to this Agreement in accordance with all applicable statutory procedures.

28. No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  No claim as a third-party beneficiary under this

Agreement by any person, firm, or corporation may be made, or be valid, against any of the

Parties.

29. Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be held in default under, or in noncompliance with,

the provisions of the Agreement, nor suffer any enforcement or penalty relating to

noncompliance or default (including liquidated damages, termination, cancellation or

revocation), where such noncompliance or alleged defaults occurred or were caused by

“Force Majeure,” defined as a strike, riot, war, earthquake, flood, tidal wave, unusually

severe rain or snow storm, hurricane, tornado or other catastrophic act of nature, labor

disputes, or other event that is reasonably beyond the party’s ability to anticipate or control.

Non-compliance or default attributable to Force Majeure shall be corrected as soon as

practicable. The party suffering the Force Majeure shall send notice as soon as reasonably

practicable following the onset and conclusion of the Force Majeure

30. Master Agreement.  To the extent there are any inconsistencies between the Master

Agreement and this document, this document shall control.

31. Existing Management Agreement.  The Existing Management Agreement shall

terminate as of the Effective Date.  [Insert provision for allocation for fiscal year

18



June 3,6, 2008

2018]remain in effect until December 31, 2018 and shall, without further action of either

Party, terminate at midnight on December 31, 2018.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the Parties has caused this Lease to be executed by its

authorized officers as of the date first above written.

CITY OF HIGHLAND PARK PARK DISTRICT OF HIGHLAND PARK

_________________________________ ___________________________________
Nancy Rotering, Mayor Brian Kaplan, President

ATTEST: ATTEST:

__________________________________ ___________________________________
City Clerk Secretary

EXHIBIT “A”

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY

19



June 3,6, 2008

EXHIBIT “B”

GRAPHIC DEPICTION OF PROPERTY AND LOTS

20



June 3,6, 2008

EXHIBIT “C”

PERMITTED ENCUMBRANCES

21



June 3,6, 2008

EXHIBIT “D”

INSURANCE COVERAGES

A. Minimum Scope of Insurance

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability coverage ("occurrence" form1.
CG 0001 1185) or Insurance Services Offices form number GL 0002 covering
Comprehensive General Liability and Insurance Services Office form number GL 0404
covering Broad Form Comprehensive General Liability, or the most recent revision.

Insurance Services Office Business Auto coverage form number CA 0001 01872.
covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 "any auto" and endorsement CA 0029 1288.

If liquor is to be sold, distributed or provided, Liquor Liability coverage in accordance3.
with Section 6-21 of the Illinois Liquor Control Act.

B. Minimum Limits of Insurance

District shall maintain limits no less than:

General Liability: $3,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury,1.
personal injury and property damage. If Commercial General Liability Insurance or
other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the general aggregate limit
shall apply separately to this location using endorsement CG 25 04 11 85 or the
general aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

Automobile Liability: $3,000,000 combined single limit per accident for bodily injury2.
and property damage including coverages for owned, hired or non-owned vehicles as
applicable.

If A.3 is applicable, liquor liability limits of $3,000,000 per occurrence combined single3.
limit.

The amount of coverage required hereby may be provided by any combination of4.
primary and excess or umbrella liability insurance policies.

C. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be approved by the Parties.

D. Other Insurance Provisions

The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

22



June 3,6, 2008

1. General Liability, Automobile Liability and Liquor Liability

City, its officers, officials, employees, and agents are to be covered asa.
additional insureds as respects: liability arising out of the Enterprise
Property and/or arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of City
and/or District. The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the
scope of protection afforded to City, its officers, officials, employees, or
agents.

The insurance coverage provided under this Lease shall be primaryb.
insurance as respects the City, its officers, officials, employees, and
agents. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by City, its officers,
officials, employees, or agents shall be excess of District's insurance and
shall not contribute with it.

Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall notc.
affect coverage provided to City, its officers, officials, employees, or
agents.

Coverage shall state that the District's insurance shall apply separately tod.
each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with
respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

2. All Coverages

Each insurance policy required by this clause shall not be suspended, voided,
cancelled, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days' prior
written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to
the District.

Acceptability of InsurersE.

Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's rating of no less than A:VII and
licensed to do business in Illinois.  Alternatively, the insurance may be obtained from an
intergovernmental self-insurance risk agency or pool.

Verification of CoverageF.

Prior to commencement of the Term, District shall furnish City with certificates of
insurance and with original endorsements if applicable effecting coverage required by this
clause. The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed by a
person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.

23

#58100008_v12



Document comparison by Workshare Compare on Wednesday, June 06, 2018
9:26:20 PM

Input:

Document 1 ID interwovenSite://HKDMS/Active/58100008/1

Description
#58100008v1<Active> - HPCC Lot 3 Lease Agreement
SME 06-03-18

Document 2 ID interwovenSite://HKDMS/Active/58100008/2

Description
#58100008v2<Active> - HPCC Lot 3 Lease Agreement
SME 06-03-18

Rendering set Standard

Legend:

Insertion 

Deletion 

Moved from 

Moved to 

Style change

Format change

Moved deletion 

Inserted cell

Deleted cell

Moved cell

Split/Merged cell

Padding cell

Statistics:

Count

Insertions 32

Deletions 20

Moved from 1

Moved to 1

Style change 0

Format changed 0

Total changes 54



1 

 

 

 

 

To:   Board of Park Commissioners  
 

From:  Ryan Ochs, Superintendent of Golf;  
Brian Romes, Director of Recreation and Facilities;  
Kathy Donahue, Deputy Director of Operations; Liza McElroy, Executive Director 

 

Date:  June 14 2018 
 

Subject: SUNSET VALLEY GOLF CLUB – COURSE RENOVATION UPDATE  
 
 

Staff will present an overview of the course conditions.  Staff will be available to answer any questions. 

 

 



1 

 

 

 

 

To:   Board of Park Commissioners  
 

From:  Brian Romes, Director of Recreation and Facilities;  
Kathy Donahue, Deputy Director of Operations; Liza McElroy, Executive Director 

 

Date:  June 14, 2018 
 

Subject: SUNSET VALLEY GOLF CLUB RENOVATION PROJECT UPDATE  
 
 

RENOVATION PROGRESS 

Significant progress has been made both inside and outside the Clubhouse at Sunset Valley Golf 
Club.  Outside the Clubhouse, the concrete patio has been poured and stone knee wall is nearing 
completion.  Excavation and grading has been completed, and the site is prepared for pouring the 
decorated concrete tent pad, asphalting areas for golf carts and laying sod on the north, east and 
south sides of the Clubhouse.  The patio trellis is planned to be completed in mid-June along with 
the concrete tent pad, while asphalt, sod and other landscaping will be completed in early to mid-
July.   Inside the Clubhouse, can-lighting and low voltage electric has been set and the HVAC system 
is installed.  This will allow for the drywall to be completed by mid-June and make way for the 
flooring as well bar and front desk millwork to be completed by the end of June.  The glass doors 
and walls have been delivered and installed.  The new look of the Clubhouse is finally starting to 
show from both the inside and outside.   
 
A variety of change orders have been added to the project due to minor unforeseen circumstances, 
project additions and value engineering.  Changes in lighting were required due to discontinued 
fixtures in the original specifications, as well as sizing complications with the can-lighting in the 
ceiling.  During demolition numerous structural issues were identified requiring tuckpointing and 
CMU block repair.  Attic insulation was value engineered to provide project savings as well avoid fire 
suppression additions.  Electrical receptacles were added on the patio, a catwalk was added in the 
attic, and millwork shelving in the lounge area was eliminated from the project.  In total, due to 
both additions and deletions in the project scope, change orders for May will not add more than 
$10,000 to the project total.  
 
Additional projects at the SVGC site have also begun.  The conversion of the cart barn to 
accommodate the electrical golf carts is underway.  Power has been trenched from the clubhouse 
transformer to the cart barn and shelving to accommodate the charging stations have been 
installed.  By mid-June parking lot lights will begin to be installed with anticipated completion in 
early July.  Landscaping bids are set to be received Thursday, June 14 and will be delivered, planted, 



2 

 

and installed in late July.  The cart barn will be painted in early July and asphalt repairs to the 
parking lot will begin in mid-July.      
 
FINANCIAL REPORT 

SVGC Clubhouse Renovation  Budget       Project YTD   Variance 

Total Hard Costs (GMP)  $     1,832,234    $   960,000   $   (872,234) 

Contingency  $           90,892   $       5,029   $      (85,863) 

Other Soft Costs  $         269,426   $    147,300   $    (122,127) 

Total SVGC Clubhouse Renovation   $     2,192,552    $ 1,112,329   $ (1,080,224) 

 

PROJECT TIMELINE 

Parking Lot Lighting, Cart Barn Conversion and Car Charging work completed July 9, 2018 

Parking Lot Asphalt work to begin       July 9, 2018 

Landscaping work to begin        July 16, 2018 

Clubhouse building/site construction substantial completion   July 20, 2018 

All site work/projects completed       August 3, 2018 

Grand Opening         August 10, 2018 

 






























	AGENDA - June 14, 2018 Workshop
	Park Avenue Barge Board Memo
	Sand Report Board Memo
	Golf Mecca Update Board Memo
	HPCC IGA 6-14-18 Board Memo
	HPCC Transfer Agreement - Elrod 06-03-18 - HPCC Transfer Agreement - Elrod 06-03-18
	HPCC_ Lease Agreement with Park District re Tree Nursery_ (from Ghida)_ 5-23-2018 Redlined_573
	HPCC Lot 4 Shared Use Agreement  SME 06-03-18 - HPCC Lot 4 Shared Use Agreement  SME 06-03-18
	HPCC Lot 3 Lease Agreement  SME 06-03-18 - HPCC Lot 3 Lease Agreement  S...
	SVGC Course Renovation Project Update  6.14.18
	SVGC CLUBHOUSE RENOVATION PROJECT UPDATE 6.14.18
	A-P Review June 14, 2018 Board Workshop

